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NOTICE OF TWENTY NINTH (29TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

To, 

The Member(s) 

B J Duplex Boards Limited  

 

NOTICE is hereby given that 29th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of B J Duplex Boards 

Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Saturday, the 30th day of September, 2023, at 2:00 PM (IST) at 

New Box Makers, I-144, Sector-2, Bawana Industrial Area, Delhi – 110039, India to transact the following 

business(es) as set out herein: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

Item No. 1: To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2023 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 

thereon. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2023 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, 

be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.” 

 

Item No. 2: To appoint a director in place of Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain (DIN: 00106272) who retires by 

rotation at this Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain (DIN: 00106272), who retires by rotation at this Annual 

General Meeting, and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a 

Director of the Company.”  

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: September 05, 2023 

By Order of the Boards of Directors 

For B. J. Duplex Boards Limited 

Sd/- 

Divya Mittal 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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NOTES 

 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS 

ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY /PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF 

HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. THE INSTRUMENT OF 

PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED (IF 

APPLICABLE) AND SIGNED AND MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE 

COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING. 

Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate 

resolution/authority, as applicable. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as proxy on behalf of 

members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% (Ten Percent) of the total 

share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% (Ten Percent) of the 

total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not 

act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. The appointment of proxy shall be in the Form No. MGT‐

11, which is annexed herewith. 

 

The proxy holder shall prove his / her identity at the time of attending the Meeting. When a member appoints 

a proxy and both the member and proxy attend the Meeting, the proxy stands automatically revoked. 

 

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending 

with the conclusion of meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged during the business 

hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days’ notice in writing is given to the Company. 

 

2. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 

entitled to vote. 

 

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the AGM pursuant to section 

113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to submit a certified true copy of the relevant Board 

Resolution/Power of Attorney together with their respective specimen signatures authorizing their 

representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM or through email at sbj@anandpulp.com. 

 

4. As required by Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the relevant details of reappointment of Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain (DIN: 00106272) as Director under 

Item No. 2 of the Notice, who retires by rotation at this Annual General are annexed as Annexure I. 

 

5. Norms for furnishing of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination: 

 

SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ MIRSD/ MIRSD-PoD-1/ P/ CIR /2023/ 37 dated 16.03.2023 in 

supersession of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/655 dated 3rd November 

2021 has instructed to mandatorily furnish PAN, KYC details and Nomination by holders of physical 

securities. In other words, it shall be mandatory for all holders of physical securities in listed companies to 

furnish PAN, Nomination, Contact details, Bank A/c details and Specimen signature for their corresponding 

folio numbers. 

 

mailto:sbj@anandpulp.com
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Accordingly, it is once again reiterated that it is mandatory for all holders and claimants of physical securities 

to furnish PAN details to RTA. 

 

Pursuant to above SEBI circular, the shareholders are requested to furnish valid PAN, email address, mobile 

number, Bank account details and nomination details immediately in the below mentioned forms to the RTA: 

 

Sr. No. Form Purpose 

(i) Form ISR-1 To register/update PAN, KYC details 

(ii) Form ISR-2 To Confirm Signature of securities holder by the Bank 

(iii) Form ISR-3 Declaration Form for opting-out of Nomination 

(iv) Form SH-13 Nomination Form 

(v) Form SH-14 Cancellation or Variation of Nomination (if any) 

 

All above Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13 and SH-14 are available on our website 

www.bjduplexboard.com. Folios wherein any one of the cited details/documents (i.e. PAN, KYC, Bank 

Details and Nomination) are not available with us, on or after October 1, 2023, shall be frozen as per the 

aforesaid SEBI circular. 

 

In view of the above, we request the shareholders to submit the duly filled-in Investor Service Request forms 

along with the supporting documents to Bank’s RTA at below address at the earliest. 

 

Freezing of Folios without PAN, KYC details and Nomination 

 

(i) The folios wherein any one of the cited document/details as in para above are not available on or after 

October 1, 2023, shall be frozen by the RTA. 

(ii) The security holder(s) whose folio(s) have been frozen shall be eligible: 

(a) to lodge grievance or avail any service request from the RTA only after furnishing the complete 

documents/details as mentioned in para above. 

(b) for any payment including dividend, interest or redemption payment in respect of such frozen 

folios, only through electronic mode with effect from April 1, 2024. An intimation shall be sent 

by the Company to the security holder that such payment is due and shall be made electronically 

only upon complying with the requirements stated in para 4 of this Circular. 

(iii) Frozen folios shall be referred by the RTA / listed company to the administering authority under the 

Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and/ or Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002, if 

they continue to remain frozen as on December 31, 2025. 

(iv) The RTA shall revert the frozen folios to normal status upon receipt of all the Documents/details as in 

para above. 

 

In case of any query / assistance, members are requested to contact our RTA, Beetal Financial & Computer 

Services Private Limited, at Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre, Near 

Data Harsukdas Mandir, New Delhi – 110062, India (Phone No.: 011 - 29961284; Email: 

beetalrta@gmail.com)  

 

 

 

Holding of shares in Electronic Form  

http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
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In respect of shareholders who hold shares in the dematerialized form and wish to update their PAN, KYC, 

Bank Details and Nomination are requested to contact their respective Depository Participants. 

 

6. Members may please note that the SEBI vide its Circular dated January 25, 2022, has mandated for listed 

companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing the service requests for (a) issue 

of duplicate securities certificate; (b) claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account; (c) Renewal / Exchange of 

securities certificate; (d) Endorsement; (e) Sub-division / Splitting of securities certificate; (f) Consolidation 

of securities certificates/folios; (h) Transmission, and (i) Transposition. 

 

Member are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form(s) as applicable 

to them, in the format available on the website of the Company as well as our RTA. The RTA after verification 

of such request shall issue a ‘Letter of Confirmation’ in lieu of physical securities certificate(s), and the 

concerned shareholders would be required to dematerialise their shares within 120 days from the date of 

issuance of ‘Letter of Confirmation’. 

 

Members holding equity shares of the Company in physical form are requested to kindly get their equity 

shares converted into demat/electronic form to get inherent benefits of dematerialization and also considering 

that physical transfer of equity shares/ issuance of equity shares in physical form have been disallowed by 

SEBI. 

 

7. Members having any question on Financial Statements or on any Agenda item proposed in the notice of AGM 

are requested to send their queries at least seven days prior at the date of AGM of the company at its registered 

office address or through email at sbj@anandpulp.com to enable the company to collect the relevant 

information. 

 

8. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, a member of the Company may nominate a person on 

whom the shares held by him/her shall vest in the event of his/her death. Members desirous of availing this 

facility may submit nomination in prescribed Form SH-13 (available on the website of the Company i.e. 

www.bjduplexboard.com) to the Company/RTA in case shares are held in physical form and to their 

respective depository participant, if held in electronic form.  

 

9. This Notice is being sent to all the members whose name appears as on Friday, September 01, 2023 in the 

Register of Members or beneficial owner as received from Beetal Financial and Computer Services Private 

Limited, the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company or the Depositories, respectively. 

 

10. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of 

the Company as on the closing time of Saturday, September 23, 2023, being the cut‐off date. Members are 

eligible to cast vote electronically only if they are holding shares as on that date. A person who is not a member 

as on the cut-off date shall treat this notice for information purpose only. All the members as on the cut-off 

date as well as date of AGM shall have right to attend the AGM. 

 

11. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 

170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are 

interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the 

members at the AGM. 

 

mailto:sbj@anandpulp.com
http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
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12. All relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice, as well as Annual Reports are open for 

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company, during the office hours, on all working days between 

10:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. upto the date of AGM as well as at the venue of AGM. 

 

13. Electronic copy of the notice and the annual report for the Financial Year 2022-23 is being sent to members 

whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ depository participants for communication purpose 

unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. The members who have not registered their 

email addresses, physical copies of the same are being sent in the permitted mode. 

 

14. Member(s) may also note that the Notice of the 29th AGM and the Annual Report for Financial Year 2022-23 

are also available on the website of the Company at www.bjduplexboard.com., on the website of Stock 

Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com  and on the website of NSDL 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/.  

 

15. Attendance slip and the route map showing directions to reach the venue of the twenty ninth (29th) AGM is 

enclosed as per the requirements of Secretarial Standard-2 of “General Meetings.” 

 

16. Members are requested to bring the Annual Report for their reference at the meeting. Admission Slip duly 

filled in shall be handed over at the entrance to the meeting hall, and duly signed in accordance with their 

specimen signature(s) registered with the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). 

 

17. Pursuant to the prohibition imposed vide Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 

ICSI and the MCA circular, no gifts/coupons shall be distributed at the Meeting. 

 

18. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same 

order of names are requested to send the share certificates to Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, for 

consolidation into single folio. 

 

19. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company 

of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. 

 

Members are also advised to not leave their Demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings 

should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified from time to 

time. 

 

20. The route map of the Venue of the Meeting is also hosted along with the Notice on the website of the Company 

i.e., www.bjduplexboard.com. 

 

21. E-VOTING PROCESS  

 

I. In Compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as substituted by the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide Members a facility to 

exercise their right electronically through electronic voting service facility arranged by National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The facility for voting through ballot paper will also be made 

available at AGM and members attending the AGM, who have not already cast their votes by remote e-

http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
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voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. The 

instructions for e-voting are annexed to the notice. 

 

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members 

attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their 

right at the meeting through ballot paper. 

 

III. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend and 

participate in the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote. 

 

IV. Mr. Parveen Rastogi, Practicing Company Secretary (COP No. 26582), has consented to act as 

Scrutinizer and appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair 

and transparent manner. 

 

V. E-voting period begins on Wednesday, September 27, 2023 (9:00 A.M. IST) and ends on Friday, 

September 29, 2023 (5:00 P.M. IST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares 

either in physical form or in dematerialized form, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module 

shall be disabled by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for voting thereafter. Once the vote 

on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 

The Members desiring to vote through electronic mode may refer to the detailed procedure on e-voting given 

hereinafter: 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 

number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with 

NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On 

the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 

enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 

you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click 

on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 

e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for 

IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, 

click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 

section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your 

sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you 

will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 

page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 

you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 

voting experience. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with 

CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 

page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 

requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon 

& New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & 

password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user 

will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links 

provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the 

user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi 

Tab and then click on registration option. 

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 

After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of 

all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding securities 

in demat mode) 

login through their 

depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 

logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 

will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 

wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 

and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 

022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 

22 55 33 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 

your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or 

CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account 

with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID 

is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account 

with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 

with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 

101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast 

your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to 

enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ 

is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your 

mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password 

to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 

account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ 

and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 

shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and 

your registered address etc. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 

for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring 

user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 

the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to sbj@anandpulp.com.  

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 

beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 

sbj@anandpulp.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are 

requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 

password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their 

mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

5. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 

Other Important Instructions 

General Guidelines for Shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature 

of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

rastogifcs3@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other 

than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority 

Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in 

their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts 

to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 

reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call 

on : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000  or send a request to Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in 

mailto:sbj@anandpulp.com;%20admin@anandpulp.com
mailto:sbj@anandpulp.com;%20admin@anandpulp.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


  

www.bjduplexboard.com 

15 

4. If any member has any problem/ query regarding e-voting as well as AGM then he/she may contact the 

following person: 

 Name: Ms. Divya Mittal 

 Designation: Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 Address: H. No.-54, G/F New Rajdhani Enclave, Near MCD Park New Delhi – 110092 

 E-mail id: sbj@anandpulp.com 

 Phone No.: 011-42141100 

 

5. The member can also update your mobile number and e-mail Id in the user profile details of the folio which 

may be used for sending future communications(s). 

 

22. VOTING THROUGH BALLOT PAPER: 

 

Members who have not exercised the option of Remote E-voting shall be entitled to participate and vote at 

the venue of the AGM on the date of AGM. The voting at the venue of the AGM shall be done through the 

Ballot Papers and Members attending the AGM shall be able to exercise their voting right at the meeting 

through Ballot Papers. After the agenda items have been discussed, the Chairman will instruct the scrutinizer 

to initiate the process of voting on the all resolutions through Ballot Papers. The Ballot Papers will be issued 

to the Shareholders/Proxy holders/ Authorised Representatives present at the AGM. The shareholder may 

exercise their right of vote by tick marking as (√) against ‘FOR’ and ‘AGAINST’ as his/her choice may be, 

on the agenda item in the Ballot Paper and drop the same in the Ballot Box(es) kept at the meeting hall for 

this purpose. 

 

In such an event, votes cast under Poll taken together with the votes cast through remote e-voting shall be 

counted for the purpose of passing of resolution(s). 

 

Any Member, who has already exercised his votes through Remote e-voting, may attend the Meeting but is 

prohibited to vote at the Meeting and his vote, if any, cast at the Meeting shall be treated as invalid. 

 

23.   General Instructions / information for members for voting on the Resolutions: 

 

i. Facility of voting through Ballot paper shall be made available at the meeting. Members attending the 

meeting, who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the 

meeting. 

 

ii. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting, but 

shall not be entitled to vote again at the AGM. 

 

iii. The voting rights of the shareholders (for voting through remote e-voting or by Ballot paper at the Meeting) 

shall be in proportion to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on Cut-off Date. A 

person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial owners maintained 

by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of e-voting as well as 

voting at the AGM. 

 

iv. Any person, who acquires shares and become the member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of 

AGM and holding shares as on the closing of cut-off date i.e. September 23, 2023, may obtain their 
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login/user ID and password for e-voting from National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) by sending a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then 

you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you have forgotten your password, 

you may reset your password by using “Forgot user Details / password” option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

v. Mr. Parveen Rastogi, Practicing Company Secretary (COP No. 26582), has been appointed by the Board 

of Directors of the Company to act as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process as well as 

voting at AGM, in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

24. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the meeting 

thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of atleast two persons not in the 

employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 2 working days of conclusion of the AGM, a 

consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the chairman or  a person 

so authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same and declare the results of the voting forthwith.  

 

25. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall  displayed on the Notice Board of the Company 

at its Registered Office and same shall be placed on the Company’s website www.bjduplexboard.com and on 

the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ immediately after the results are declared by the 

Chairman or a person authorised by him and the same shall also be simultaneously communicated to BSE 

Limited, the  Stock Exchange, where the equity shares of the Company are listed. 

 

26. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the 

Annual General Meeting i.e. 30th day of September, 2023. 

 

27. Members/Proxies/authorised representative are requested to bring their duly filled Attendance Slip, which is 

annexed to the proxy form along with the copy of the Annual Report to the meeting.  

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: September 05, 2023 

By Order of the Boards of Directors 

For B. J. Duplex Boards Limited 

Sd/- 

Divya Mittal 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Annexure I 

 

INFORMATION REGARDING DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ 

REAPPOINTMENT IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE 

LISTING REGULATIONS, 2015: 

 

Name of the Director Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain 

DIN 00106272 

Category of Director Whole time Director 

Date of Birth (Age in Years) 19/07/1954, 69 Years 

Date of Appointment on the Board of the Company 13/03/1995 

Brief Resume Mr. Bhsuahn is a Graduate having experience 

in trading of paper business.  

Qualification Graduate 

Experience in Specific Functional Area Experience in trading of paper business 

Number of shares held in the Company including as beneficial 

owner 

67,010 Equity Shares 

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se Not related to other Directors 

Relationship with Manager and other Key Managerial Personnel 

of the Company 

Not related to Manager and other Key 

Managerial Personnel 

Other Directorship held in other Companies 1. Lalamart Technologies Private Limited 

2. Darshni Enterprises Private Limited 

Member/Chairman of Committee of the Board of other 

Companies on which he is a Director 

NIL 

Listed entities from which the person has resigned in the past 

three years 

NIL 
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Form No. MGT-11 

PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

CIN: L21090DL1995PLC066281 

Name of the Company: B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 

Registered Office: H. No.-54, G/F New Rajdhani Enclave, Near MCD Park, New Delhi – 110092, 

India 

Name of the Member:  

Registered Address:  

Email ID:  

Folio No./Client ID:*  

DP ID:*  

*Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form. 

I/We __________ of _________ Being the member/members of B J Duplex Boards Limited, hereby appoint the 

following as my/our Proxy to attend vote on a poll (for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting 

of the Company, to be held Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 2:00 P.M. at NEW BOX MAKERS, I-144, SECTOR-

2, BAWANA INDUSTRIAL AREA, DELHI – 110039, INDIA and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 

resolutions as are indicated below; 

1. Name 

Email ID 

or failing him/her 

Registered Address 

Signature 

2. Name 

Email ID 

or failing him/her 

Registered Address 

Signature 

3. Name 

Email ID 

or failing him/her 

Registered Address 

Signature 

** I/We direct my/our Proxy to vote on the Resolutions in the manner as indicated below 

 

S. No. Resolution Number of Shares 

held 

For Against 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the 

Audited Financial Statements of the 

Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2023 together with the reports 

of the Board of Directors and Auditors 

thereon. 

   

2.  To appoint a director in place of Mr. Satya 

Bhushan Jain (DIN: 00106272) who 

retires by rotation at this Annual General 
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Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself 

for re-appointment. 

 

This is optional. Please put a tick mark (√) in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the box. 

If a member leaves the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all the Resolutions, the proxy will be 

entitled to vote in the manner he/she thinks appropriate. If a member wishes to abstain from voting on a particular 

resolution, he/she should write “Abstain” across the boxes against the Resolution. 

 

Signature of Member ________________________ 

 

Signature of Proxy Holders _____________________      

 

 

Signed this ____ day of ______ 2023 

 

 

NOTES: 

1. The Proxy to be effective should be deposited at the Registered office of the company not less than FORTY 

EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the Meeting.  

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.   

3. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for or against column blank against any or all 

resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate. 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp of 

Re. 1 
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

I/we hereby confirm and record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of B J DUPLEX BOARDS 

LIMITED to be held on Saturday, September 30, 2023, at 2:00 PM at NEW BOX MAKERS, I-144, 

SECTOR-2, BAWANA INDUSTRIAL AREA, DELHI – 110039, INDIA   

Folio No.: DP ID*: Client ID*: 

Full name and address of the 

Shareholder/Proxy Holder (in 

block letters) 

  

Joint Holder 1   

Joint Holder 2   

No. of Shares Held   

*Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form.   

 

I certify that I am the registered shareholders/proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy 

 

Notes:   

1. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for FY 2022-23 and Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with 

Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email address is registered with the 

Company/Depositary Participant unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. Shareholders 

receiving electronic copy and attending the Annual General Meeting can print copy of this Attendance Slip.   

2. Physical copy of the Annual Report for 2022-23 and Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with 

Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is sent in the permitted mode(s) to all members whose email ids are not 

registered with the Company or have requested for a hardcopy. 
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ROUTE MAP 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 29th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 

along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.  

 

Financial Highlights: 

 

The Financial Results for the year under review are summarized as under: 

PARTICULARS 
For F.Y 2022-23 

(Amount in Rs. ‘000’) 

For F.Y 2021-22 

(Amount in Rs. ‘000’) 

Total Income  - - 

Total Expenditure 381.46 133.26 

Profit/(loss) before tax and Exceptional item (381.46) (133.26) 

Less: Exceptional item - - 

Profit before tax (381.46) (133.26) 

Less: Current Tax - - 

Less: Deferred tax - - 

Profit (Loss) for the period (381.46) (133.26) 

Earnings per share   

Basic (0.07) (0.03) 

Diluted (0.07) (0.03) 

 

For further details, kindly refer to the Financial Statements forming part of this report. 

 

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS/ PERFORMANCE  

 

Due to adverse business condition, the Company has not undertaken any business activity during the year under 

review.  

 

The amount of Total Expenditure including professional and other expenses sums out to be Rs. 381.46 Thousands. 

Therefore, the Profit/Loss before and after tax, for the year under review, stood negative at Rs. 381.46 Thousands 

i.e. the amount spent towards discharging expenses as compared to the loss of Rs. 133.26 Thousand, incurred in 

the previous Financial Year 2021-2022.    

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The financial statements have been prepared as per the IND-AS prescribed by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI).  

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

In terms of Section 134 (3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter to be referred to as Act) the Annual Return 

of the Company as on March 31, 2023, as referred to in sub section (3) of Section 92 is available on the website 

of the Company at https://www.bjduplexboard.com/investor-relations/. 
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD 

 

The information in terms of Section 134(3)(b) of the Act is given below: - 

 

Dates for the Board Meetings are well decided in advance and communicated to the Board and the intervening 

gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The agenda and 

explanatory notes are sent to the Board in advance. The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws 

applicable to the Company. 

 

During the year, 5 (Five) Board Meetings were held on the following dates: 

Sr. No Date of Board Meeting 
No of Directors eligible 

to attend the Meeting 

No of Directors attended 

Meetings 

1 17.05.2022 4 4 

2 09.08.2022 4 4 

3 04.11.2022 4 4 

4 10.11.2022 4 4 

5 10.02.2023 4 4 

 

 

GENERAL BODY MEETING 

 

During the year under review, the Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 30, 2022 for 

the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021.   

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: -  

 

As required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, your Directors state that: 

 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along 

with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

b. the accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates made 

are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the 

end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period; 

c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the said Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going-concern basis; 

e. the proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

f. the proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
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FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 

 

In terms of Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Companies Act, 2013, there are no frauds reported by auditors under sub-

section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, details of which are required to be mentioned in the 

Director’s Report.  

 

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 in respect of meeting the criteria of independence provided under Section 149(6) of the said Act. The 

Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not disqualified to act as an Independent Director 

in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is also of the opinion 

that the Independent Directors fulfill all the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making them eligible 

to act as Independent Directors. 

 

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, skills, 

experience and expertise and that they hold the highest standards of integrity. 

 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:  

 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has, on the 

recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company, framed a policy for selection 

and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and their remuneration.  The salient 

features of the Policy are:  

 

i. It lays down the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and independence for 

appointment of a director (executive/non-executive/independent) of the Company; 

 

ii. To recommend to the Board the policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, KMP and Senior 

Management/Other Employees of the Company; and 

 

iii. Reviewing and approving corporate goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of the executive 

Directors, evaluating their performance in light of those goals and  objectives and either as a committee or together 

with the other independent Directors (as directed by the Board), determine and approve executive Directors’ 

compensation based on this evaluation; making recommendations to the Board with respect to KMP and Senior 

Management compensation and recommending incentive-compensation and equity-based plans that are subject  

to approval of the Board. 

 

During the year under review, there has been no change to the Policy.  The Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

of the Company is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at the following web link: 

https://www.bjduplexboard.com/investor-relations/.  

 

 

 

 

https://www.bjduplexboard.com/investor-relations/
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AUDITORS REPORT 

 

i. Statutory Audit Report: - 

 

M/S V. R. Bansal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN 016534N), were appointed as Statutory 

Auditors of the Company at the 25th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2019 for a term of 

five consecutive years. The Auditors’ Report being self-explanatory, requires no comments from the 

Directors. Further, there are no reservations, qualifications, disclaimers or adverse remarks in the Audit 

Reports issued by them in respect of Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-

23. 

 

ii. Secretarial Audit Report: - 

 

M/s Parveen Rastogi & Co., Practicing Company Secretary having CP No. 26582 and Membership No. 

F4764 was appointed by the Board of Directors as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial 

year under review pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has provided all 

assistance, facilities, documents, records and clarifications etc. to the Secretarial Auditors for conducting 

their audit. The Report of Secretarial Auditors for the financial year 2022-23 is annexed as ‘Annexure 

A’ and forms part of this report.  

 

The observations of the secretarial auditors in their report are self-explanatory and therefore, the directors 

do not have any further comments to offer on the same. 

 

iii. Internal Auditor:- 

 

The internal auditor of the Company is M/s G.M. & Co., Chartered Accountants who was appointed for 

the financial year 2022-23 in accordance to Section 138 of the Companies Act, read with Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and carried out the roles and responsibilities which are as follows: 

 Evaluated and provided reasonable assurance that risk management, control, and governance 

systems are functioning as intended and will enable the organization’s objectives and goals to be 

met. 

 Reported risk management issues and internal controls deficiencies identified directly to the audit 

committee and provided recommendations for improving the organization’s operations, in terms 

of both efficient and effective performance. 

 Evaluated information security and associated risk exposures. 

 Evaluated regulatory compliance program with consultation from legal counsel. 

 

iv. Cost Audit:- 

 

The Company is not required to prepare and maintain cost records pursuant to Section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, SECURITIES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 

186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of the Act, there were no Loans, Guarantees and Investments which covered under 

the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.  

 

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES UNDER 

SECTION 188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

All related party transactions that were entered by the Company during the financial year 2022-23 were on arm’s 

length basis and in ordinary course of business. Therefore, the provisions of the Section 188 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 were not attracted. 

 

Further, there are no materially significant related party transactions during the year under review which may have 

a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Thus, the Disclosure in form AOC-2 is not required. 

However, the details of all Related Party Transaction have been disclosed in Note 16 of the Financial Statements 

of the Company. 

 

RESERVES:  

 

No amount was transferred to the Reserves under the head “Other Equity” in the Balance Sheet during the year 

under review.  

 

Further, no amount has been transferred or proposed to be transferred to any other reserves.  

 

DIVIDEND 

 

Considering the financial business and adverse business conditions, your Directors have decided to not to 

recommend any amount for declaration of Dividend for the year under review. Hence, information required in 

terms of Section 134(3)(k) of the Act is Nil.  

 

The provisions regarding the formulation of Dividend Distribution Policy were not applicable to the Company.  

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 

COMPANY TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 

REPORT 

 

There are no material changes or commitments, effecting the financial position of the Company happening in 

between the end of the Financial Year 2022-23, to which the Financial Statements relate, and the date of this 

Report.  
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

The details of conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as 

follows: 

 

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 

1.  the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy Not applicable 

as the Company 

has not carried 

out any business 

activity. 

2.  the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy 

3.  the capital investment on energy conservation equipment 

 

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 

The Company has not carried out any research and development activities. Accordingly, the information 

related to technology absorption is not applicable to your Company. 

 

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

 

During the year under review, the Company neither had any Foreign exchange earnings norincurred any 

Foreign Exchange Expenditure.  

 

STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

POLICY IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(n) OF THE ACT 

 

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has formulated and adopted a Risk 

Management Policy that covers a formalized Risk Management Structure, alongwith other aspects of Risk 

Management i.e. Credit Risk Management, Operational Risk Management, Market Risk Management and 

Enterprise Risk Management. The Risk Management Policy approved by the Board acts as an overarching 

statement of intent and establishes the guiding principles by which key risks are managed across the organization. 

Directors are overall responsible for identifying, evaluating, and managing all significant risks faced by the 

Company. 

 

THE DETAILS ABOUT THE POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR IN TERMS 

OF SECTION 134(3)(o) OF THE ACT: -  

 

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the 

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to our Company. 
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A STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF 

THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS HAS 

BEEN MADE IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(p) OF THE ACT READ OVER WITH RULE 8(4) OF 

THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014: - 

 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, in consultation with its Nomination 

& Remuneration Committee, has put in place a framework containing, inter-alia, the criteria for performance 

evaluation of the entire Board of Directors of the Company, its Committees and Individual Directors, including 

Independent Directors. Accordingly, the following is the criteria for evaluation: - 

 

a) Criteria for evaluation of the Board of Directors as a whole: 

i. The Frequency of Meetings 

ii. Quantum of Agenda  

iii. Administration of Meetings 

iv. Flow and quantity of Information from the Management to the Board 

v. Number of Committees and their role.  

vi. Overall performance of the Company 

vii. Engagement in Corporate Governance, ethics and compliance with the Company’s code of conduct. 

 

b) Criteria for evaluation of the Board Committees: 

i. Appropriateness of size and composition 

ii. The Frequency of Meetings 

iii. Quantum of Agenda  

iv. Administration of Meetings 

v. Flow and quantity of Information from the Management to the Committee  

vi. Role of Committees.  

vii. Contribution to the decision-making process of the Board. 

 

c) Criteria for evaluation of the Individual Directors including Independent Directors;  

i. Experience and ability to contribute to the decision-making process 

ii. Problem solving approach and guidance to the Management 

iii. Attendance and Participation in the Meetings 

iv. Personal competencies as per Chart given in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and 

contribution to strategy formulation 

v. Contribution towards statutory compliances, monitoring of controls and Corporate Governance 

vi. The evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire board of directors which shall 

include: - 

(a) Performance of the directors; and 

(b) fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Listing Regulations and their independence from the management: 

Provided that in the above evaluation, the directors who are subject to evaluation shall not 

participate 

 

The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board 

and while doing so, the Director subject to evaluation shall not participate. On the basis of 
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performance evaluation done by the Board, it will be determined whether to extend or continue 

their term of appointment, whenever their respective term expires. 

 

Moreover, the performance evaluation is also based on the terms as specified by the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee as per the PART D of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. 

 

HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES AND 

THEIR CONTRIBUTION TO THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY DURING THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER REVIEW  

 

Since, the Company does not have any Subsidiary Company, Associate Company or a Joint Venture.  

Further, no company has become or ceased to be Company’s Subsidiary or Associate during the year under review. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM & ITS ADEQUACY 

 

There are adequate internal control procedures which commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of 

its business for the purchase of inputs, availing of services, fixed assets, for the sale of goods and providing of 

services. Full-fledged Internal Audit department carries out pre and post audit of all significant transactions 

throughout the year. Based on the Annual Internal Audit programme as approved by Audit Committee of Board, 

regular internal audits are conducted. Company has also appointed M/s GM & Co., Chartered Accountants, New 

Delhi (outsourced) as Internal Auditor before Audit Committee, which reviews and discuss the actions taken with 

the Management. 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF COMPANY’S BUSINESS 

 

There is no change in the nature of Company’s business, during the year under review.  

 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR 

HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR 

 

DIRECTORS 

 

The Directors in the Company as on 31.03.2023 are as follows: - 

 

Sr. No. DIN Name of Director Designation 

1.  00106272 Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain Whole Time Director 

2.  03031419 Mr. Ashish Jain  Independent Director 

3.  03267887 Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Director 

4.  08438613 Ms. Vasudha Jain Independent Director 

 

Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja (DIN: 03267887), who was liable to retire by rotation, was re-appointed as Director by the 

Shareholders in their Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2022. 

 

Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the 

Company, Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain (DIN: 00106272), Director of the Company retire by rotation in the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
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The Brief Resume and other details relating to the Director who is proposed to be re-appointed on retirement by 

rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, as required to be disclosed under Regulation 36 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regulations forms part of the Notice of Annual General Meeting. 

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):  

 

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in the Company as per Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 

as on 31.03.2023 are as follows: -  

 

Sr. No. Name of KMP Designation 

1.  Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain Whole Time Director 

2.  Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Chief Financial Officer 

3.  Ms. Divya Mittal  Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

There was no change (appointment or cessation) in the office of KMPs during the year under review. 

 

DEPOSITS 

 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the Financial Year under review in terms of 

Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY`S OPERATIONS IN 

FUTURE 

 

The Company has not received any significant or material orders passed by any Regulatory Authority, Court or 

Tribunal which shall impact the going concern status and Company`s operations in future. As such, the 

information in terms of Rule 8 (5) (vii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is nil. 

 

DISCLOSURE AS TO COST AUDIT AND COST RECORDS 

 

The Company does not fall within the purview of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence, it is not 

required to appoint a cost auditor and to maintain any cost records for the financial year 2022-2023 and 

accordingly such accounts and records are not maintained by the Company. 

 

DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

Although the provisions related to the constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 are not applicable to our 

Company, however it may please be noted that there have been no complaints under this Act during the year under 

review. 
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DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

 

There are no applications made or proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 in 

relation to the Company and therefore, information as required under Rule 8(5)(xi) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 for the year under review  is not applicable to our Company. 

 

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF 

ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE 

BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF 

 

There was no one time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution by the Company during the year under 

review. 

 

DECLARATIONS ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT BY DIRECTORS AND THE 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 

The Company is committed to conducting its business in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and 

regulations and with the highest standards of business ethics. Company’s Code of Ethics is intended to provide 

guidance and help in recognizing and dealing with ethical issues, mechanisms to report unethical conduct and to 

help foster a culture of honesty and accountability. The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors, Senior 

Management and other Employees of the Company.  

 

The Declaration in terms of Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 by the Whole Time Director of the Company stating that members of the Board of Directors 

and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors and 

senior management is annexed to this report as ‘Annexure B’. 

 

REVIEW OF LEGAL COMPLIANCE REPORTS  

 

During the year, the Board periodically reviewed compliance reports with respect to the various laws applicable 

to the Company, as prepared and placed before it by the Management. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

(A) Authorised Share Capital:  

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 stands at Rs.1,20,00,000/- (divided 

into 1,20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each). During the year, there has been no change in the 

Authorized Share Capital of the company.  

 

(B) Issued, Subscribed and Paid –Up Share Capital 

The Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023, stands at Rs. 

51,81,200 /- (divided into 51,81,200 Equity Shares of Rs.1/ each and Calls in Arrears of Rs. 14,15,000/-) 

 

After the closure of the financial year under review, the Company has forfeited a total of 2,52,700 Partly 

Paid Equity Shares of the Company in a duly convened meeting of the Board of Directors on May 2, 2023. 

As a result of this forfeiture, the paid up share capital of the company has been reduced to Rs. 37,66,200/-  
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(C) Issue of Shares with Differential Rights 

The Company has not issued any shares with Differential Rights during the year under review. 

 

(D) Issue of Sweat Equity Share 

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity shares or Employee Stock Options during the year under 

review. 

 

UTILIZATION OF FUNDS  

 

The Company has not raised any funds through issue of any securities during the Financial Year 2022-23. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Your Company is not required to mandatorily comply with the provision of Regulation 17 to Regulation 27 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 dealing with Corporate Governance 

conditions, as its equity share capital is less than Rs.10 Crores and Net Worth is not exceeding Rs. 25 Crores, as 

on the last day of the previous financial year.  

 

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE 

ACCOUNT 

 

There is no demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account of the Company because such a requirement 

never got necessitated in relation to the shares of the Company. As such, the information in this regard is nil. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF CERTAIN TYPES OF AGREEMENTS BINDING LISTED ENTITIES 

 

This is not applicable to our Company as the Company has not entered into any type of agreement as specified 

under Clause 5A of paragraph A of part A of Schedule III of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015 during the Financial Year 2022-23. 

 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINIBILITY REPORT 

 

Regulation 34 (2) (f) of the SEBI  (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not 

applicable to the Company because the Company is not among top 1000 listed entities based on market 

capitalization as on 31st March, 2023 who are required to submit the Business Responsibility and Sustainability 

Report. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT: 

 

Management Discussion & Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Part B of Schedule V 

to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 is presented in a separate section as ‘Annexure C’, forming part of this Report. 
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PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/ KMPs/EMPLOYEES: - 

 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with 

Rule 5(1), 5 (2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 are as under:  

 

Rule                   PARTICULARS 

(i) The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to 

the median remuneration of the employees of the 

Company for the financial year 2022-23 

NAME OF DIRECTOR RATIO 

Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain 

(Whole Time Director)  

Nil 

Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Nil 

Mr. Ashish Jain  Nil 

Ms. Vasudha Jain  Nil 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each 

Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer, Company Secretary in the 

financial year 2022-23 

NAME OF 

DIRECTOR/KMP 

PERCENTAGE 

INCREASE 

Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain 

(Whole Time Director) 

Nil 

Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Nil 

Mr. Ashish Jain  Nil 

Ms. Vasudha Jain  Nil 

Ms. Divya Mittal  Nil 

(iii) The percentage increase in the median 

remuneration of employees in the financial year 

2022-23. 

Nil  

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls 

of the company. 

Nil  

 The explanation on the relationship between 

average increase in remuneration and Company’s 

performance 

Not Applicable, since there has been no increase 

in the Remunerations  

(v) Average percentile increases already made in the 

salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its 

comparison with the percentile increase in the 

managerial remuneration and justification 

thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 

circumstances for increase in the managerial 

remuneration 

Not Applicable to the Company, as all the 

employees are under Managerial cadre. 

(vi) The key parameters for any variable component 

of remuneration availed by the directors. 

Any variable component of remuneration payable 

to the Directors is based on the parameters, as 

approved by the Board of Directors, on the basis 

of the recommendation of the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee of the Board. The said 

parameters are set considering the provisions of 

applicable regulations, Nomination (including 

Boards’ Diversity), Remuneration and Evaluation 

Policy of the Company and the respective 
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resolution(s) of the Members of the Company, as 

applicable 

(vii) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid 

director to that of the employees who are not 

directors but receive remuneration in excess of 

the highest paid director during the year 

During the year under review, there is no 

employee in the Company who is not a director 

but receives remuneration in excess of the highest 

paid director i.e. Whole time Director of the 

Company. 

(viii) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 

remuneration policy of the company 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as 

per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of 

the Company.  

(ix) The statement containing particulars of 

employees as required under Section 197(12) of 

the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

The information showing names and other 

particulars of employees as per Rule 5(2) and 5(3) 

of the aforesaid Rules read with Section 197 (12) 

of the Act is given in the table below. 

 

Information showing names and other particulars of employees as per Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the aforesaid 

Rules read with Section 197 (12) of the Act. 

 

Rule 5(2): 

 

Statement showing the names of the top ten employees in 

terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every 

employee, who- 

(i) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt 

of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was 

not less than one crore and two lakh rupees; 

(ii) if employed for a part of the financial year, was in 

receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate 

which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and 

fifty thousand rupees per month; 

(iii) if employed throughout the financial year or part 

thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, 

in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in 

the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing 

director or whole-time director or manager and holds by 

himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, 

not less than two percent of the equity shares of the 

company. 

Not Applicable 
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Sr. No. Information Details Details Details 
 

 1 2 3 

1 Name of Employee Mr. Satya Bhushan 

Jain 

Mr. Sudhanshu 

Saluja 

Ms. Divya Mittal 

2 Designation of the 

Employee 

Whole Time Director Executive Director 

and Chief Financial 

Officer 

Company Secretary 

& Compliance 

Officer 

3 Remuneration Received 

(Rs.) 

Nil Nil 1,44,000 

4 Nature of employment, 

whether contractual or 

otherwise 

Permanent Permanent Permanent 

5 Qualifications and 

experience of the 

employee 

B.Com Graduate B.Com Graduate B. Com, LLB and 

Company Secretary 

6 Date of commencement 

of employment 

March 13, 1995 May 27, 2021 May 20,  2019 

7 The age of such 

employee 

69 Years 38 Years 39 Years 

8 The last employment 

held by such employee 

before joining the 

company 

NA NA Omega Brake 

Components Private 

Limited 

9 The percentage of equity 

shares held by the 

employee in the 

company within the 

meaning of clause (iii) of 

Rule 5(2)  

1.29% NIL NIL 

10 Whether any such 

employee is a relative of 

any director or manager 

of the company and if so, 

name of such director or 

manager: 

No No No 
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COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

Pursuant to requirement under Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has constituted various Committees of Board such as Audit Committee, 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Your Directors wish to inform that in Compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, an Audit 

Committee of the Board is duly constituted. The Audit Committee as on March 31, 2023 comprises of the 

following Directors: -  

 

Sr. No.  Name of the Director  Designation  

1.  Mr. Ashish Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Chairman 

2.  Ms. Vasudha Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Member 

3.  Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Non-Executive Director, Member 

 

Further, all recommendations of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

 

The primary objective of the Committee is to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of 

transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The Committee met four times during the year under 

review.  

 

During the financial year 2022-23, Four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held, details of the same are 

as under:  

 

Date of Meetings 
Attendance 

Mr. Ashish Jain Ms. Vasudha Jain Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja 

17.05.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

09.08.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

10.11.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

10.02.2023 Yes Yes Yes 

 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

of the Board is duly constituted. As on March 31, 2023 the Committee comprised of the following Directors: - 

 

Sr. No.  Name of the Director  Designation  

1.  Mr. Ashish Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Chairman 

2.  Ms. Vasudha Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Member 

3.  Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Non-Executive Director, Member 
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall determine qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and other employees.  

 

During the financial year 2022-23, the Committee met once. The details of the meetings held and the attendance 

there at of the Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as detailed herein below: 

 

Date of Meetings 
Attendance 

Mr. Ashish Jain Ms. Vasudha Jain Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja 

09.08.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee of the Board is duly constituted. As on March 31, 2023 the Committee comprised of the following 

Directors: - 

 

Sr. No.  Name of the Director  Designation  

1.  Mr. Ashish Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Chairman 

2.  Ms. Vasudha Jain Non-Executive Independent Director, Member 

3.  Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja Non-Executive Director, Member 

 

During the financial year 2022-23, the Committee has met once in the year. The details of the meeting held and 

attendance there at of the Members of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as detailed herein below: 

 

Date of Meetings 
Attendance 

Mr. Ashish Jain Ms. Vasudha Jain Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja 

10.11.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING  

 

During the year, One Meeting of Independent Director’s was convened and held on January 31, 2023. The 

Independent Directors have handed over the proceedings of the meeting to the Whole Time Director of the 

Company: 

 

Date of Meetings 
Attendance 

Mr. Ashish Jain Ms. Vasudha Jain 

31.01.2023 Yes Yes 
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VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of 

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct, if any. The details of 

the Whistle Blower Policy are posted on the website of the Company.  

 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONSHIPS: - 

Relations between the Management and the employees at all levels have been cordial and the Directors wish to 

express their appreciation for the cooperation and dedication of the employees of the Company.  

 

COMPLIANCE WITH LISTING REGULATIONS: - 

The equity shares of the company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE). The Company has in place the following 

Policies as required under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015: - 

 

1. Code for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information pursuant to Regulation 8(1) of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

 

2. Policy on Criteria for determining Materiality of events/information’ under Regulation 30 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 

The company has already paid listing fees for the Financial Year 2023-24 to BSE Limited. The said Fees for the 

Financial Year 2022-23 was paid duly within time. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company is following the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Act. 

 

INSIDER TRADING: 

The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure 

of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. The said Code has been posted on the Website of the Company 

www.bjduplexboard.com. Further, the Board has also adopted the Code of Conduct To Regulate, Monitor And 

Report Of Trading By Designated Persons and Their Immediate Relatives in accordance with the requirements of 

the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Insider trading Code of the company lays down 

guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the Company, 

as well as the consequences of violation. The said codes were duly adhered to during the year under review. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.bjduplexboard.com/
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DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

 

The Company’s equity shares are in compulsory Demat mode in terms of SEBI Guidelines. This has been 

facilitated through an arrangement with NSDL. About 16.17 % of the issued shares of the Company are in 

dematerialized form as per the latest shareholding pattern of the Company filed for June 2023 quarter. Beetal 

Financial & Computer Services Private Limited, New Delhi are acting as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents 

acts as common agency and perform all activities in relation to share transfer facility as maintained by them in 

terms of Regulation 7 (2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Annual Report 2022-23 of the Company containing Standalone Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, Cash 

Flow Statement, other statements and notes thereto, prepared as per the requirements of Schedule III to the 

Companies Act, 2013, Directors’ Report (including Management Discussion and Analysis Report) is being sent 

via email to all shareholders who have registered their email address(es) with the Depositories/Company. Full 

version of the Annual Report 2022-23 is also available for inspection at the Registered office of the Company 

during working hours up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM). It shall also be available at the 

Company`s website www.bjduplexboard.com, on the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) 

https://nsdl.co.in/.   

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s 

objectives, expectations or forecasts may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and 

regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that 

could influence the Company’s operations include the status of the promoters, change in government regulations, 

tax laws, economic developments within the country and other factors such as litigation, arrangement of funds. 
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in supporting the Company in its continued robust performance on all fronts. 

 

 By order of the Board of Directors 

For B J Duplex Boards Limited 

 

 

Place: Delhi 

Date: September 05, 2023 

Sd/- 

Sudhanshu Saluja 

Director 

DIN: 03267887 

Sd/- 

Satya Bhushan Jain 

Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00106272 
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‘ANNEXURE A’ 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2022-23 

 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 

H.NO.54 G/F NEW RAJDHANI ENCLAVE,  

NEAR MCD PARK, SHAHDARA 

EAST DELHI – 110092 IN. 

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate governance practices by B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED (hereinafter called the “Company”) 

having CIN L21090DL1995PLC066281. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, 

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023, complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, returns filed and other records maintained by B J 

DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED (the “Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according 

to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;(Not 

Applicable to the Company as no Foreign Transactions has been done during the year under review) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period.) 
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d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period. 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period); 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021: (Not applicable during the financial year under review). 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations,1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit period); and 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit period); and 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 

Compliances/processes/systems under other specific applicable Laws (as applicable to the industry) to the 

Company are being verified on the basis of periodic certificate under Internal Compliance System submitted to 

the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, We have relied on information/records produced 

by the Company during the course of our audit and the reporting is limited to that extent. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India on meetings of the Board 

of Directors and General Meetings. 

 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. 

During the period under review, the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

 Company has applied for revocation of suspension which is under process because Company is suspended 

from the stock exchange due to penal reason.  

We have not examined compliance by the Company with applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax 

laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals. 

 

WE FURTHER REPORT THAT: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted on the Board. The changes in the composition of the 

Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meetings. 
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As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were 

unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 

 

 WE FURTHER REPORT THAT: 

 

 There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of 

the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 We further report that during the audit period there was no event/action having a major bearing on the 

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. 

 

We further report that, there were no instances of: 

 

(i) Public / Rights / Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity. 

(ii) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(iii) Redemption / buy-back of securities. 

(iv) Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction etc. 

(v) Foreign technical collaborations. 

 

 

 

 

 

PLACE: DELHI                                                                                                                        

DATE:  05.09.2023                                                                                                      

For PARVEEN RASTOGI & Co. 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 

PARVEEN RASTOGI 

C.P. NO. – 26582 

M. NO.- 4764 

UDIN: F004764E000946441 
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To, 

The Members, 

B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 

H.NO.54 G/F NEW RAJDHANI ENCLAVE,  

NEAR MCD PARK, SHAHDARA 

EAST DELHI – 110092 IN. 

 

‘Annexure A’ 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 

correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 

provide a reasonable basis of our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 

Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 

efficacy of effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 

 

 

 

PLACE: DELHI                                                                                                                        

DATE:  05.09.2023                                                                                                      

For PARVEEN RASTOGI & Co. 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 

PARVEEN RASTOGI 

C.P. NO. – 26582 

M. NO.- 4764 

UDIN: F004764E000946441 
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‘ANNEXURE B’ 

 

DECLARATION BY THE WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR UNDER SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LISTING 

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

 

 

I hereby confirm that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the 

Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel, as approved by the Board, for the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: September 05, 2023 

Place: Delhi  

Sd/- 

Satya Bhushan Jain  

Whole Time Director  

DIN:00106272 
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ANNEXURE-‘C’ TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

As per Regulation 34(2) (e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is as follows: 

A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS 

 

 GLOBAL PAPER INDUSTRY:  

 

The global economic growth was estimated at a slower 3.4% in 2022, compared to 6.3% in 2021 (which 

was on a smaller base of 2020 on account of the pandemic effect). The relatively slow global growth of 

2022 was marked by the Russian invasion of Ukraine, unprecedented inflation, pandemic induced 

slowdown in China, higher interest rates, global liquidity squeeze and quantitative tightening by the US 

Federal Reserve. 

 

The challenges of 2022 translated into moderated spending, disrupted trade and increased energy costs. 

Global inflation was 8.7% in 2022, among the highest in decades. US consumer prices decreased about 

6.5% in 2022, the highest in four decades. This prompted the Federal Reserve to raise its benchmark 

interest rate to its highest in 15 years. The result is that the world ended in 2022 concerned that the 

following year would be slower. The global equities, bonds, and crypto assets reported an aggregated 

value drawdown of US$ 26 trillion from peak, equivalent to 26% of the global gross domestic product 

(GDP). In 2022, there was a concurrently unique decline in bond and equity markets; 2022 was the only 

year when the S&P 500 and 10-year US treasuries delivered negative returns of more than 10%. 

 

Gross FDI inflows – equity, reinvested earnings and other capital – declined 8.4% to $55.3 billion in 

April-December. The decline was even sharper in the case of FDI inflows as equity: these fell 15% to 

$36.75 billion between April and December 2022. Global trade expanded by 2.7% in 2022 (expected to 

slow to 1.7% in 2023). 

 

The S&P GSCI TR (Global benchmark for commodity performance) fell from a peak of 4,319.55 in June 

2022 to 3495.76 in December 2022. There was a decline in crude oil, natural gas, coal, lithium, lumber, 

cobalt, nickel and urea realisations. Brent crude oil dropped from a peak of around US$ 120 per barrel in 

June 2022 to US$ 80 per barrel at the end of the calendar year following the enhanced availability of low-

cost Russian oil.  

 

 INDIAN PAPER INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:  

 

The Indian paper and packaging market were pegged at US$ 10.77 Billion (H88,314 crores) in 2022 and is 

expected to reach US$ 15.69 Billion (H1,25,520 crores) by 2027, growing at a CAGR of 6.63%. Packaging-

grade paper makes up for 55% of the major kinds of paper produced. The printing and writing paper market 

is expected to grow at a CAGR of 1.8% during 2022-2026. This segment is expected to witness a demand 

growth due to factors such as rising population, re-opening of offices, growing traction in the pharmaceutical 

and e-commerce industry among others. 
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B. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS ANALYSIS OF THE INDIAN PAPER INDUSTRY: 

 

THREATS:    

 Inflationary pressure on raw material costs. 

 Increasing competition from cheaper imports creating pricing pressure. 

 Hampering paper demand by digitalisation and digitization. 

 Increase in energy cost cannibalising competitiveness. 

 

OPPORTUNITIES: 

 Considerable demand headroom due to lower per capita consumption. 

 Rising demand of packaging paper/board in food and pharma sector.  

 Greater hygiene awareness due to the pandemic. 

 Increasing demand from downstream sectors (kraft, corrugation, duplex).  

 Innovative product creation possibilities. 

 Ban on single-use plastic to generate demand.  

 

C. SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE: 

 

The Company operated in only one business segment i.e. Paper/ Paper board (including Duplex Board) at 

New Delhi. Moreover, at present the Company is not operative and thus and have any active business 

engagements.  

 

D. OUTLOOK:  

 

The global economy is expected to grow 2.8% in 2023, influenced by the ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict. 

Concurrently, global inflation is projected to fall marginally to 7%. Despite these challenges, there are positive 

elements within the global economic landscape. The largest economies like China, the US, India, Japan and 

South Korea are not in a recession. Approximately 70% of the global economy demonstrates resilience, with 

no major financial distress observed in large emerging economies. Despite high inflation, the US economy 

demonstrated robust consumer demand in 2022. Driven by these positive factors, global inflation is likely to 

be still relatively high at 4.9% in 2024. Interestingly, even as the global economy is projected to grow less 

than 3% for the next five years, India and China are projected to account for half the global growth. 

 

E. RISKS AND CONCERNS:  

 

 Demand risk: Preferential shift of consumers towards digitisation could hinder demand. 

 Regulatory risk: Non-compliance with statutory norms could attract penalties and impact the 

Company’s credit rating. 

 Resource risk: Overuse of water along with a substandard water discharge can harm resource security 

and respect. 

 Raw material risk: Scarcity in essential raw materials like wood, pulp, coal and chemicals could 

bring down output with profitability. 
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F. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

 

The Company has adequate internal control system for business processes, with regard to efficiency of 

operations, financial reporting and controls, compliance with applicable laws and regulations etc., clearly 

defined roles and responsibilities for all managerial positions have also been institutionalized. All operating 

parameters are monitored and controlled. Regular internal audits and checks ensure that responsibilities are 

executed effectively. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors periodically reviews the adequacy and 

effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests improvements for strengthening these.  

 

G. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL 

PERFORMANCE: 

 

This has been dealt with in the Directors’ Report. 

 

H. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, 

INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED 

 

Since, there were no material developments in human resources / industrial relations front, including number 

of people employed during the year under review therefore, this provision is not applicable to the Company.    

 

I. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E., CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO 

THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

 

No significant changes took place in the key financial ratios of the Company, therefore this provision is not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

 

J. DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED TO THE 

IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED EXPLANATION 

THEREOF. 

 

The company has been facing financial challenges from past few fiscal years, reporting losses in such financial 

years. Due to no good/profitable track record in the Company, therefore there were no/negative returns on the 

Net Worth of the Company and no change in return on net worth compared to the immediately previous 

financial year.   

 

K. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

 

There has been no change in the accounting policies during the period under review. However, from April 

1st, 2019, the provisions relating to IND-AS shall be applicable on the Company. 
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 

projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of 

applicable securities laws or regulations. These statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of 

future events. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could 

make a difference to the Company’s operations include global and domestic demand supply conditions, finished 

goods prices, raw material cost and availability, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic 

developments within India and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations. The Company assumes no 

responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent 

developments, information or events. 
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CERTIFICATION BY THE WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF 

THE COMPANY 

 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

B.J. Duplex Boards Limited 

 

We, the undersigned, to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that: 

 

We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit to state a material fact or contains 

statement that might be misleading; 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance 

with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 

We also certify, that based on our knowledge and the information provided to us, there are no transactions entered 

into by the Company, which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company’s code of conduct. 

 

The Company’s other certifying officers and we are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls 

for financial reporting and procedures for the Company and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s 

internal controls and procedures pertaining to financial reporting. 

 

The Company’s other certifying officers and we have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation, wherever 

applicable, to the Company’s auditors and through them to the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of 

Directors: 

 All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, which we are aware and have 

taken steps to rectify these deficiencies; 

 Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year: 

Any fraud, for which we have become aware of and that involves Management or other employees who 

have a significant role in the Company’s internal control systems over financial reporting; 

 Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: Delhi 

Date: September 05, 2023 

 

 

Sd/- 

Satya Bhushan Jain 

Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00106272 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Sudhanshu Saluja 

Chief Financial Officer 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 

To  

The Members of  

B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 

H.NO.54 G/F NEW RAJDHANI ENCLAVE,  

NEAR MCD PARK, SHAHDARA 

EAST DELHI – 110092 IN. 

 

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of B.J. DUPLEX LIMITED (“the 

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows, and the Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 

(hereinafter referred to as Ind AS Financial Statements). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid 

standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner 

so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2023, the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in 

equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

 

We draw attention to Note 16(2) of the attached financial Statements which indicates that the Company incurred a net 

loss of Rs. 381.46 (Rs. In thousand) during the year ended 31st March 2023 and, as of that date matters in Note 16(2), 

indicate that company’s current liabilities exceed current assets, that indicated that a material uncertainty exist that may 

cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 

this matter. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 

communicated in our report. 

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 

1 

 

Our finding with respect to Going 

Concern 

As included in Note 16(2) to the financial statements, the 

Company’s financial statements have not been prepared using 

the going concern basis of accounting. The use of this basis of 

accounting is inappropriate as management either intended to 

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so.  

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we concur with 

management in the preparation of the Company’s financial 

statements not on the basis of going concern. 

Management has identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, and accordingly disclosed in the financial 

statements. Based on our audit of the financial statements, we 

also have identified such a material uncertainty. 

2 Taxation 

Significant judgments are 

required in determining provision 

of income taxes, both current and 

deferred, as well as the assessment 

of provision for uncertain tax 

position including estimates of 

interest and penalties where 

appropriate. 

 

We evaluated the design and implementation of controls in 

respect of provision for current tax and the recognition and 

recoverability of deferred tax assets. 

We discussed with management the adequate implementation 

of policies and control regarding current and deferred tax. 

We examined the procedure in place for the current and 

deferred tax calculation for completeness and valuation and 

audited the related tax computation and estimates in the light of 

our knowledge of the tax circumstances. Our work was 

conducted with our tax specialist. 

We performed the assessment of the material components 

impacting the tax expenses, balance and exposures. We 

reviewed and challenged the information reported by 

components with the support of our own tax specialist, where 

appropriate. 

In respect of deferred tax assets and liabilities, we assess the 

appropriateness of management’s assumptions and estimates to 

support deferred tax assets for tax losses carried forward and 

related disclosures in financial statements. Based on the 

procedure performed above, we obtained sufficient audit 

evidence to corroborate management’s estimates regarding 

current and deferred tax balances. 
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report. Our opinion 

on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with  the financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the  audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standaloneInd AS financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows 

and changes in equity of the company of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 

Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of theInd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for the assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are also responsible for 

overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether theInd AS financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of theseInd AS financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management.  

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS financial statements that, individually or 

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS 

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 

the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
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communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 

Annexure ‘A’a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.  

 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

 

(c) The Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 

Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are 

in agreement with the books of account. 

 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the Company 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B” to this 

report. 

 

(g) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 

of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, the reporting requirements are not applicable since the 

Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year. 

 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us: 

 

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind 

AS financial statements. 

 

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, 

for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
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(iii) There were no amount which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 

by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company 

from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 

contain any material misstatement. 

 

(v) The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting requirements 

under rule 11(f) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

As Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for the 

feature of recording of audit trail (edit log) facility in the accounting software used by the company for 

maintenance of books of account and related matters, is applicable for the company only with effect from 

financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 is currently not applicable. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: 25/05/2023     

Place: Delhi 

V.R. Bansal & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

  Firm Registration No. 016534N 

 

 (Rajan Bansal) 

              Partner 

 Membership No. 093591 

 UDIN: 23093591BGVOGW6731  
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT, 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 

report to the Members of B J Duplex Boards Limited of even date) 

1. The clause 3(i)(a),(b),(c),(d) and (e) are not applicable since the Company has no Property , Plant , Equipment 

and Intangible assets. 

2. The para 3(ii) of the order is not applicable since the company has no inventory. 

3. The Company has not made any investments in or granted any loans, or advances in the nature of loans, 

secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other parties & accordingly, the 

provisions of clauses iii (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations and explanations given to us, the company 

has complied with the provisions section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, 

making investments and providing guarantees and securities, where ever applicable. 

5. As per information given to us the Company has not accepted any deposits covered under the provisions of 

Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed thereunder. 

6. As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records has not been 

specified by the Central Government under sub –section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, & 

accordingly, the provisions of clause (vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

7. (a) According to the records of the Company, in our opinion, the company has not deposited the dues of 

Employees Provident Fund, with the appropriate authorities in India and arrears of these dues as at 31st March, 

2023 outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date from which they became payable were 

Rs.1181.84 (Rs. In thousand) on account of E.P.F. There is also default in payment of late filing fee of Rs 5.8 

(Rs. In thousand) relating to prior periods u/s 234E of Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(b) As per the records of the Company, there are no disputed dues in respect of income tax or sales tax or 

service tax or duty of custom or duty of excise or value added tax, outstanding as at 31st March 2023. 

8. In our opinion and based on the information and explanations given by the management, there were no any 

transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during 

the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) nor there is any previously 

unrecorded income that has been recorded in the books of account during the year. 

9. (a) Based on the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to a Financial Institution, Bank, 

Government or dues to debenture holders wherever applicable. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 

the Company, the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any 

other lender; 

 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term 

loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(9)(c) of the Order is 

not applicable. 
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedure performed by us, and on an 

overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term 

basis have been used for long term purposes by the Company.  

 

(e) Based on the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not taken any funds 

from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 

ventures; 

 

(f) Based on the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not raised loans 

during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and 

hence reporting under clause 3(ix) (f) is not applicable. 

 

10. (a) According to the information and explanation given by the management, the Company has not raised any 

money way of initial public offer/ further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under 

clause (9) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

convertible debentures during the year under review, therefore clause (14) is not applicable to the Company. 

 

11. (a) During the checks carried out by us and as per information made available to us, no fraud on or by the 

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year under audit. 

 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during 

the year and upto the date of this report. 

 

(c) There were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year. 

 

12. The company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not 

applicable to the company. 

13. According to the information and explanation given by the management, transactions with the related parties 

are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have 

been disclosed in the notes to Ind AS financial statements, as required by the applicable Indian accounting 

standards. 

 

14. (a) The Company is required to appoint an internal auditor as per section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

However, the Company has not appointed any internal auditor during the year. Therefore, we have not 

considered internal audit reports in our audit. 

 

15. In our opinion and as per information given to us, the Company has not entered into any non- cash transactions 

with the directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

16. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

therefore clause 16(a), (b), (c) and (d) are not applicable to the Company. 
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17. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs.381.46 (Rs. in thousand) during the financial year covered by 

our audit and Rs. 133.26 (Rs. in thousand) during the immediately preceding financial year. 

 

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment 

of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the 

Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, it indicates that Company’s current liabilities exceed current assets, that indicates a material 

uncertainty exist that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. We 

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 

guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 

date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 

20. The Company is not required to comply with section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting 

under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: 25/05/2023     

Place: Delhi 

V.R. Bansal & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

  Firm Registration No. 016534N 

 

 (Rajan Bansal) 

              Partner 

 Membership No. 093591 

 UDIN: 23093591BGVOGW6731  
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  

 

To the Members of B J Duplex Boards Limited 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 

(“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of 

the Company for the period ended on that date.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 

deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects.  

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

 

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

 

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 

directors of the company; and 

 

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 

and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate.  

 

Opinion  

 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

31st March2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: 25/05/2023     

Place: Delhi 

V.R. Bansal & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

  Firm Registration No. 016534N 

 

 (Rajan Bansal) 

              Partner 

 Membership No. 093591 

 UDIN: 23093591BGVOGW6731 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023 

  
Notes  As at  

 March 31,2023  

 (Rs. '000's)  

 As at  

 March 31,2022  

 (Rs. '000's)  

Non-current assets 
   

Financial assets 
   

(i) Investments 
 

- - 

(iii) Other financial assets 3 125.00 125.00 

Other non-current assets 
 

- - 
  

125.00 125.00 

Current assets 
   

Financial assets 
   

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 4 117.64 100.35 

Current tax assets (Net) 5 - -   
117.64 100.35     

Total Assets 
 

242.64 225.35     

    

Equity 
   

Equity share capital 6 3,766.20 3,766.20 

Other equity 7 (11,421.97) (11,040.51) 
  

(7,655.77) (7,274.31) 

Liabilities 
   

Non-current liabilities 
   

Provisions 
 

- -   
- - 

Current liabilities 
   

Financial liabilities 
   

(i) Borrowings 8.1 5,883.40 5,493.71 

(ii) Trade payables 
   

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises 
 

- - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 

small enterorises 

8.2 178.18 178.18 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 8.3 455.00 465.94 

Other current liabilities 9 1,381.84 1,361.84 

Current tax liabilities (Net) 
 

- - 
  

7,898.41 7,499.66     

31/05/2023 
 

242.64 225.34     

Summary of significant accounting policies 2 
  

Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 15 
  

Other notes on accounts 16 
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The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

 

For V.R. Bansal & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Registration No. 016534N 

 

 

 

Rajan Bansal 

Partner 

Membership No. 093591 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Divya Mittal  

(Company Secretary) 

M No: A25495 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Satya Bhushan Jain 

(Whole Time Director) 

DIN: 00106272 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sudhanshu Saluja 

(Director) 

DIN: 03267887 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 25-05-2023 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 

   
Notes  As at  

March 31,2023 

(Rs. '000's) 

 Year ended  

 March 31,2022  

 (Rs. '000's)  

I INCOME 
   

 
Revenue from operations 10 - -  
Other income 11 - -  
Total Income 

 
- -      

II EXPENSES 
   

 
Employee benefits expense 12 58.00 -  
Finance costs 13 4.90 0.30  
Other expenses 14 318.55 132.96 

 
Total Expenses 

 
381.46 133.26      

III Profit /(loss) before exceptional items and tax 
 

(381.46) (133.26)  
Add : Exceptional items 

 
- - 

IV Profit /(loss) before tax  
 

(381.46) (133.26)      

V Tax expenses 
   

 
Current tax 

 
- -  

Income tax expense 
 

- -      

VI Profit/ (loss) for the year  
 

(381.46) (133.26)      

VII Other comprehensive income  
 

- - 
 

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, 

net of tax 

 
(381.46) (133.26) 

     

VIII Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, 

net of tax 

 
(381.46) (133.26) 

     

IX Earnings per equity share 
   

 
(nominal value of share Rs.1/-) 

   

 
Basic (Rs.) 

 
(0.07) (0.03)  

Diluted (Rs.) 
 

(0.07) (0.03)      

Summary of significant accounting policies 2 
  

Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 15 
  

Other notes on accounts 16 
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The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

 

For V.R. Bansal & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Registration No. 016534N 

 

Rajan Bansal 

Partner 

Membership No. 093591 

 

 

 

 

Divya Mittal  

(Company Secretary) 

M No: A25495 

 

 

 

 

Satya Bhushan Jain 

(Whole Time Director) 

DIN: 00106272 

 

 

 

 

Sudhanshu Saluja 

(Director) 

DIN: 03267887 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 25-05-2023 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

  
 Period ended  

March 31,2023 

 Amount in 

(Rs.'000's)  

 Period ended  

 March 31, 2022  

 

 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
  

 
Profit/ (loss) before Income tax  (381.46) (133.26)  
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows 

  

  
Interest income - -   
Interest on Income Tax and TDS - -   
Interest on Income Tax Refund - -   
Interest and Financial Charges 4.90 0.30   
Excess provisions no longer required written back - - 

 
Operating Profit before working capital changes (376.55) (132.96)  
Movement in working capital 

  

  
(Increase)/ Decrease in  current financial assets - -   
(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Tax Asset - -   
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Bank Balance - -   
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current financial 

liabiliites 

(10.93) (8.95) 

  
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabiliites 20.00 - 

 
Cash generated from operations (367.49) (141.91)   

Income tax paid (net of refunds) - - 
 

Net Cash flow from Operating  Activities (A) (367.49) (141.91) 
      

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
  

  
Loans and advances taken (Net) 

 
-       

 
Net Cash flow from/(used) in Investing Activities (B) - -       

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  

  
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short term borrowings 389.68 (153.87)   
Interest Paid - -   
Financial Charges (4.90) (0.30) 

 
Net Cash Flow from/(used) in Financing Activities (C) 384.78 (154.17)       

 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

(A+B+C) 

17.29 (296.08) 

  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 100.35 396.43 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 117.64 100.35       

 
Notes : 

  

 
1 The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under 

the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting 

Standard-7, "Statement of Cash Flows". 
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2 Components of cash and cash equivalents :- 

  

    
As at 

March 31,2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 
    

  
Cash and cash equivalents 

  

  
In Current Account (Kotak Mahindra Bank) 62.13 44.83   
In Margin Money Account (Andhra Bank) 53.31 53.31   
Cash in Hand  2.21 2.21 

   
117.64 100.35 

 

 

 FOR B J DUPLEX BOARDS LIMITED 

 

 

 

 

Divya Mittal  

(Company Secretary) 

M No: A25495 

 

 

 

 

Satya Bhushan Jain 

(Whole Time Director) 

DIN: 00106272 

 

 

 

 

Sudhanshu Saluja 

(Director) 

DIN: 03267887 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 25-05-2023 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

         

B J Duplex Boards Limited is a Public (listed) Company incorporated on 13th March 1995. It is classified as 

Non Govt. Company and is registered at Registrar of Companies, Delhi. Its authorised share capital is Rs. 

12,00,00,000 and its paid up capital is Rs. 51,81,200/. It is involved in trading of paper and boards. 

   

The Company was a 'sick industrial company' within the meaning of section 3(1)(0) of the Sick Industrial 

Company,s (special provision) Act, 1985 as declared by the Boards for Industrial and Financial 

Reconstruction vide its order dated 8th August, 2005. However, the Comapny was deregistered from the BIFR 

vide order dated 21.04.2010 passed by the Boards for Indusrtial and Financial Reconstruction. 

    

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES        

This note provides a list of the significant accounting polices adopted in the preparation of the standalone 

financial statement. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherswise 

stated.           

              

2.01. Statement of compliance         

             

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. For all periods 

including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with 

accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 

7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).  The financial statements were authorised for 

issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 25, 2023.      

              

2.02. Basis of preparation of financial statements        

          

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments 

that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in accounting policies 

subsequently.            

         

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.  

            

The ministry of Corporate affairs amended the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 on 24 March 2021 

to increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These 

amendments are effective from 1 April 2021.       

     

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with recognition and measurement principles of 

Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balance of assets 

and liabilities, disclosure relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the   

reported amount of income and expense for the period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on ongoing basis. Revision of accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are 
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revised and future period affected.         

   

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.  

         

2.03. Current versus non-current classification       

             

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the financial statement with current / non-current 

classification.            

  

An asset is treated as current when it is:        

    

a) expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle   

b) held primarily for purpose of trading 

c) expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or    

d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period        

All other assets are classified as non-current.       

A liability is current when:          

  

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle       

b) It is held primarily for purpose of trading        

c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or    

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period.          

All other liabilities are classified as non current.   

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization 

in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

  

2.04. New and amended standards adopted by the Company      

          

"The Company has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting 

period commencing 1 April 2021: 

- Extension of Covid 19 related concessions – amendments to Ind AS 116 

- Interest rate benchmark reform – amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 107, Finanacial 

Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 116, lease.  

The amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected 

to significantly affect the current or future periods."       
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2.05. Financial Instruments         

   

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assets of one entity and a financial liability 

or equity instrument of another entity.        

    

              

i. Financial Assets           

 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:  

         

a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 

through profit & loss). 

b) Those measured at amortised cost.        

       

 Initial recognition and measurement        

   

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at 

fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 

financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial asset that require delivery of assets within a time frame 

established by regulation or conversion in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the 

trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase and sell the assets.   

           

 Subsequent measurement         

 For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in following categories: 

          

a) Debt instruments at amortized cost 

b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)   

c) Debt instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)     

d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

e) Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)   

          

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement 

of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. 

fair value through other comprehensive income). For investment in debt instruments, this will depend on 

the business model in which the investment is held. For investment in equity instruments, this will depend 

on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for 

equity instruments at FVTOCI.          

 

Debt instruments at amortized cost        

   

 A Debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:  

              

i. Business Model Test: The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 

collecting contractual cash flows, and 

ii. Cashflow Characterstics Test: Contractual terms of asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on principal amount outstanding.  



  

www.bjduplexboard.com 

70 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 

premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The EIR amortization is included 

in finance income in statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the 

statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade, other receivables, loans and other 

financial assets.           

  

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI        

          

 A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

          

i. Business Model Test: The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual 

cash flows and selling financial assets, and        

ii. Cashflow Characterstics Test: The asset's contarctual cash flows represent SPPI.   

  

Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting 

date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 

However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange 

gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On dereognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss 

previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit & loss. Interest earned 

whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

  

Debt instruments at FVTPL         

            

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria 

for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.   

  

In adition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost 

or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 

a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has not 

designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.       

  

Equity investments of other entities        

              

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 

held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an 

irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income all subsequent changes in the fair value. 

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on 

initial recognition and is irrevocable.        

     

In case of equity instruments classified as FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 

excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 

statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the 

cumulative gain or loss within equity.        
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Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss.        

           

 Derecognition           

A financial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of group of similar financial 

assets) is primarily derecognised when:        

              

a) The right to receive cash flows from the assets have expired, or 

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass 

through" arrangement and either:          

(i) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or   

(ii) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 

but has transferred control of the asset.         

              

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 

passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of 

ownership. Where it has nither transferred not retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 

assets, nor transferred control of the assets, the Company continues to recognise the transferred assets to 

the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an 

associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 

the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.      

     

 Impairment of financial assets          

            

The Company assess at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any such indication exist, the Company estimates recoverable amount of the asset. If such 

recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets 

belong is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The 

reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the 

balance sheet date there is any indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exist, the 

recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a 

maximum of depreciated historical cost.         

        

No impairment loss has been provided on non finanacial assets considering that no indications internal/ 

external exists those suggests that recoverable amount of asset is less than its carrying value.  

             

ii. Financial liabilities:           

 Initial recognition and measurement        

            

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 

loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.  

         

All financial liabilities are recognised intially at fair value and in case of loans, borrowings and payables, 

net of directly attributable transaction costs.       
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The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables.     

       

 Subsequent measurement         

 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

             

 Trade Payables           

 These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of 

financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 120 days of 

recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 

12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured 

at amortized cost using EIR method.         

      

 Loans and borrowings           

 This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 

recognized in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 

amortization process.            

           

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement 

of profit and loss.           

             

 Derecognition           

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

medication is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

            

 Reclassification of financial assets:        

  

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 

initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and 

financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there 

is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected 

to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result 

of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are 

evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or 

ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial 

assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of 

the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not 

restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 
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 The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for:  

  

Original 

classification 

Revised 

classification 

Accounting treatment 

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference 

between previous amortized cost and fair value is 

recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

FVTPL Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date become its new gross 

carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross 

carrying amount. 

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference 

between previous amortised cost and fair value is 

recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to 

reclassification. 

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 

amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative gain 

or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, 

the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at 

amortised cost. 

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying 

amount. No other adjustment is required. 

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative 

gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to 

statement of profit and loss at the reclassification date. 

             

 Offsetting of financial instruments:        

   

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.    

          

 2.06. Taxes 

 

Tax expense for the year comprises of direct tax and indirect tax.     

Direct Taxes            

              

a) Current Tax           

i. Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 

from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax 

rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, 

at the reporting date in India as per Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) where 

the Company operates and generates taxable income. 

ii. Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is 

recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity).Current tax 

items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either in statement of profit and 

loss or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
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with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 

establishes provisions where appropriate. 

       

b) Deferred Tax           

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

          

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry 

forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent 

that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, 

and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:  

         

(a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of 

the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.   

       

(b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred 

tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse 

in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can 

be utilised.          

              

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 

tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 

recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 

asset to be recovered.           

     

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 

the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

       

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the 

statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are 

recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direct in equity.  

         

Deferred Tax includes Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only 

to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the 

specified period, i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company 

reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent 

the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

           

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and 

the same taxation authority.          
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Indirect Taxes            

              

Goods and Service Tax has been accounted for in respect of the goods cleared. The Company is providing 

Goods and Service tax liability in respect of finished goods. GST has been also accounted for in respect 

of services rendered. (w.e.f. 1st July, 2017 GST has been implemented. All the taxes like Excise Duty, 

Value Added Tax, etc. are subsummed in Goods and Service Tax.) 

     

2.07. Revenue Recognition          

    

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account 

contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 

and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Amounts disclosed 

are inclusive of Goods and service tax and net of returns, trade discounts, rebates and amount collected on 

behalf of third parties. (w.e.f. 1st July, 2017 GST has been implemented. All the taxes like Excise Duty, 

Value Added Tax, etc. are subsummed in Goods and Service Tax.)     

     

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting 

as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue 

arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is  

also exposed to inventory and credit risks. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met 

before revenue is recognized:          

 

a) Sale of services           

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred 

to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in 

exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its 

revenue arrangements.           

            

i) Variable Consideration:         

  

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of 

consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable 

consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant 

revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated 

uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of 

electronics equipment provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates. The rights of return and 

volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.        

              

ii) Contract Assets:           

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If 

the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration 

or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. 

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only 

the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).     
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b) Interest           

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 

applicable interest rates.           

           

2.08. Earnings Per Share           

             

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.   

         

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company after 

adjusting impact of dilution shares by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 

year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive 

potential equity shares into equity shares.         

              

2.09. Borrowing Costs           

            

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part 

of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which 

they occur.            

           

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and 

charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effective interest rate (EIR) method. Borrowing cost 

also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.  

            

2.10. Impairment of non- financial Assets         

             

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 

If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates 

the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating 

unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an 

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 

other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 

amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.  

  

"In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 

the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, 

if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These 

calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples , quoted share prices for publicaly traded companies or 

other available fair value indicators."         

      

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining 

useful life.            
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Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of 

the impairment at the end of each reporting period.        

 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously 

recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company 

estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 

only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since 

the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 

not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised 

in the statement of profit and loss.          

             

2.11. Segment accounting           

           

The Company's main business is sale/ purchase of papers and boards. All other activities of the Company 

revolve around ths main business. There are no separate segments within the Company as defined by the Ind 

AS 108 (Operating Segment) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.    

           

 2.12. Leases            

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 

consideration.  

           

Company as a lessee          

  

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term 

leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments 

and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.     

            

a) Right-of-use assets           

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 

underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of 

right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-

use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated 

useful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)        

            

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects 

the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 

'Impairment of non-financial assets'.         
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b) Lease Liabilities           

"At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 

value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments 

(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that 

depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 

payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the 

Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company 

exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are 

recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event 

or condition that triggers the payment occurs."       

     

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at 

the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. 

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest 

and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is 

remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., 

changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease 

payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.   

    

c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets       

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the 

Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are 

classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease 

terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying 

amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.   

          

 Company as a lessee:           

Finance Leases            

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance 

lease. Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of 

the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are 

apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 

of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in the 

statement of profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are 

capitalized in accordance with Company's general policy on the borrowing cost.   

         

 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty 

that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the 

shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.     
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Operating leases           

            

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss account on 

straight line basis over the lease term, unless the payments are structured to increase in line with the 

expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor in expected inflationary cost increase. 

              

 2.13. Government Grants         

             

Government Grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant 

will be received and all the attached conditions will be complied with.    

        

There are no grants or subsidies received from the governement during the previous year.  

           

 2.14. Fair Value Measurement          

            

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.   

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 

the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:   

(i) In the principal market for asset or liability, or      

     

(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.  

 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.   

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.  

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.      

 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing 

the use of unobservable inputs.         

   

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:       

Level 1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable        

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable         

   

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization 

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole ) at the end of 
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each reporting period.          

  

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on 

the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 

hierarchy as explained above.          

       

 2.15. Estimates and assumptions        

    

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and 

estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances 

and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or 

circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions 

when they occur.           

          

Judgments            

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following 

judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

            

a) Revenue from contracts with customers        

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount 

and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:      

     

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint   

In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected value method 

or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to 

which it will be entitled. The Company determined that the expected value method is the appropriate 

method to use in estimating the variable consideration for revenue from operations. Before including any 

amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the  Company considers whether the amount of 

variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable 

consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current 

economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a 

short time frame. 

           

b) Fair value measurement of financial instrument 

       

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques 

including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable 

markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing 

fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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c) Impairment of Financial assets    

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 

loss rates. the Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 

impairment calculation, based on Company's past history ,existing market conditions as well as forward 

looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.      

  

d) Impairment of non-Financial assets        

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 

If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates 

the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value 

less cost of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 

generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. 

Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 

impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.      

             

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into 

account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These 

calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.   

    

e) COVID-19 Impact on Estimates, Judgemnets , Revenue & Financial instruments  

          

i. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19):- 

The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to 

COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of Receivables, Inventories and other assets / liabilities. In 

developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic 

conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial 

results has used internal and external sources of Information. As on current date, the Company 

has concluded that the Impact of COVID - 19 is not material based on these estimates. Due to the 

nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify 

significant uncertainties In future periods, if any. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's 

financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial 

statements.           

ii. Loss allowance for receivables and unbilled revenues:-     

The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience 

adjusted to reflect current and estimated future economic conditions.The Company considered 

current and anticipated future economic conditions relating to industries the company deals with 

and the countries where it operates. In calculating expected credit loss,the Company has also 

considered credit reports and other related credit information for its customers to estimate the 

probability of default in future and has taken into account estimates of possible effect from the 

pandemic relating to COVID -19.        
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iii. Revenue from Operations:        

 The Company has evaluated the impact of COVID – 19 resulting from (i) the possibility of 

constraints to render services which may require revision of estimations of costs to complete the 

contract because of additional efforts;(ii) onerous obligations;(iii) penalties relating to breaches 

of service level agreements, and (iv) termination or deferment of contracts by customers. The 

Company has concluded that the impact of COVID – 19 is not material based on these estimates. 

Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify 

significant uncertainties relating to revenue in future periods.     

 2.16. Cash and Cash Equivalents         

           

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 

with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 

value.            

For the purpose of statement of cash flow, cash & cash equivalents consists of cash and short term deposits 

as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered as integral part of Company's 

cash management.           

      

 2.17. Standards issued but not effective       

     

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23rd March 2022 notified Companies 

(Indian accounting standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards and 

are effective from 1st April 2023.These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the 

Company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.   

           

 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particulars Nos.  (Amount in Rs.'000) 

As at April 1 , 2021 5181200.00 5181.20 

Less: Calls in Arrears  - (1,415.00) 

As at March 31 , 2022 5181200.00 3,766.20    

As at March 31 , 2023 5181200.00 3,766.20 

             

B. OTHER EQUITY  

(Amount in Rs.'000)  
Reserves & Surplus 

Retained Earning 

Total 

As at April 1, 2021 (10,907.25) (10,907.25) 

Net Profit/(loss)  for the year (133.26) (133.26) 

Other comprehensive income for the year 
 

- 

Re- measurement gains on defined benefit 

plans (net of tax) 

- - 

As at March 31, 2022 (11,040.51) (11,040.51) 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (381.46) (381.46) 

Other comprehensive income for the year 
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Re- measurement gains on defined benefit 

plans (net of tax) 

- - 

As at March 31, 2023 (11,421.97) (11,421.97) 

 

Note 

The paid up capital of Company was reduced to 51,81,200 equity share of Rs. 1/- each from the existing 

51,81,200 equity share of Rs. 1/- each pursuant to admission to of corporate action by Central Depository 

Services Limited and National Securities Depository Limited and subsequent cancellation of share 

certificate by the Registrar during the quarter ended 31st December, 2018. The Reduction of capital was 

effected through the order of Hon'ble High Court, pronounced on 29th August, 2016. The balance of Rs 

46630.8/- (Rs. in 000's) arising from reduction of share capital was adjusted through Debit Balance of 

Retained Earnings. 

 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2 

Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 15 

Other notes on accounts 16 

       

              

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
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3. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

(Amount in Rs. '000) 

 

 As at  

 March 31,2023  

 As at  

 March 31,2022  

OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS   
At amortised cost   
Unsecured, considered good   
Security deposits with Government Authorities 125.00 125.00 

 125.00 125.00 

 

4. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

4.1 Cash & Cash Equivalents 
  

 
Balance with banks 

  

 
  In Current Account (Kotak Mahindra Bank) 62.13 44.83  
  In Margin Money Account (Andhra Bank) 53.31 53.31  
Cash in Hand 2.21 2.21 

  
117.64 100.351 

 

5. CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) 

Tax Deducted at Source (TDS)                                 -                                    -    

                                -                                    -    

 

6.  

 
 As at  

 March 31,2023  

 (Rs. '000's)  

 As at  

 March 31,2022  

 (Rs. '000's)  

(a) Authorized 
  

  12,000.00 12,000.00   

    

(b) Issued 
  

51,81,200 equity shares of Rs.1/- each (March 31, 

2022: 51,81,200 equity shares of Rs.1/- each) 

5,181.20 5,181.20 
  

    

(c)  Subscribed and fully paid up 
  

Equity shares 51,81,200 of Rs. 1/- each (March 

31,2022: 51,81,200  Equity share of Rs. 1/- each) 

5,181.20 5,181.20 

Less: Calls in Arrears (1,415.00) (1,415.00) 
  

3,766.20 3,766.20 

    

(d) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

  March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 
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  No. of 

shares 

Amount 

in 

Rs.'000 

No. of 

shares 

Amount 

in 

Rs.'000 

 At the beginning of the year 51,81,200 5,181.20 51,81,200 5,181.20 

 Add: Shares issued during the year - - - - 

 Less: Reduction in Share Capital (Refer Note 

below) 

- -   

 At the end of the year 51,81,200 5,181.20 51,81,200 5,181.20 

      

(e) Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.1/- per share (March 31, 

2022 : Rs.1/- per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company 

declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. 

 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 

remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will 

be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.  

 

As per the records of the Company no calls remain and unpaid by the directors and officers of the 

Company. 

      

(f) Aggregate number of shares bought back, or issued as fully paid up pursuant to contract 

without payment being received in cash or by way of bonus shares during the period of five 

years immediately preceding the date of Balance Sheet:     

    

  As at 

March 31,2023 

No. of shares 

As at 

March 31,2022 

No. of shares 

 

 

 Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant 

to contracts for consideration other than cash.  

NIL NIL 

 Equity shares allotted as fully paid up bonus 

shares by capitalisation of securities premium 

account and general reserve. 

NIL NIL 

 Equity shares bought back NIL NIL 

 Note 

The paid up capital of Company was reduced to 51,81,200 equity share of Rs. 1/- each from the 

existing 51,81,200 equity share of Rs. 1/- each pursuant to admission to of corporate action by 

Central Depository Services Limited and National Securities Depository Limited and subsequent 

cancellation of share certificate by the Registrar during the quarter ended 31st December, 2018. The 

Reduction of capital was effected through the order of Hon'ble High Court, pronounced on 29th 

August, 2016. The balance of Rs 46630.8/-(Rs. in 000's) arising from reduction of share capital has 

been adjusted through Debit Balance of Retained Earnings. 

    

(g) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

   As at March 

31,2023 

As at March 31,2022 % 

change 
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 S. 

No. 

Promoter Name No of 

share

s 

% of total 

share 

No of 

shares 

% of total 

share 

during 

the 

year 

** 

 1.  Anita Jain 12,30

0 

0.24% 12,300 0.24% - 

 2.  Alka Jain 2,300 0.04% - 0.00% -0.04% 

 3.  Amit Gupta 1,100 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 4.  Anil Kumar Jain 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 5.  Anju Saluja 30,00

0 

0.58% 16,300 0.31% -0.26% 

 6.  Ashok Jain 9,600 0.19% 9,600 0.19% - 

 7.  Assim S Puthawala 50,00

0 

0.97% - 0.00% -0.97% 

 8.  Atiq M Puthawala 50,00

0 

0.97% - 0.00% -0.97% 

 9.  Baldev Raj Taneja 600 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 10.  Balram Bhasin 1,200 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 11.  Basudeo Soni 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 12.  Bindu Jain 14,00

0 

0.27% 14,000 0.27% - 

 13.  Chander Mohan Sharma 97,50

0 

1.88% - 0.00% -1.88% 

 14.  Dalip Kumar 1,200 0.02% 1,200 0.02% - 

 15.  Deepa Jain 3,700 0.07% 3,700 0.07% - 

 16.  Deepak Jain 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 17.  Deepak Mittal 500 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 18.  Dharmpal Tyagi 600 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 19.  Dhruv 1,200 0.02% 1,200 0.02% - 

 20.  Gajanand Mittal 500 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 21.  Gautam Chaudhary 31,20

0 

0.60% - 0.00% -0.60% 

 22.  Girdhar Gopal Gupta 1,200 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 23.  Gopal Singh 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 24.  Harish Chand Shastri 97,50

0 

1.88% - 0.00% -1.88% 

 25.  J K Kochar 9,000 0.17% - 0.00% -0.17% 

 26.  Kailash Arora 9,300 0.18% 9,300 0.18% - 

 27.  Kailash Chand Jain 10 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00% 

 28.  Kapil Chaudhary 37,40

0 

0.72% - 0.00% -0.72% 

 29.  Lalit Gupta 9,300 0.18% - 0.00% -0.18% 

 30.  Madan Mittal 700 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 31.  Madhu Gupta 1,200 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 32.  Madhu Jain 10,00

0 

0.19% - 0.00% -0.19% 
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 33.  Mahavir Prasad Jain 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 34.  Mahesh Kumar Rathor 700 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 35.  Mukesh Jain 16,00

0 

0.31% - 0.00% -0.31% 

 36.  Pankaj Jain 2,03,9

00 

3.94% 2,03,900 3.94% - 

 37.  Pankaj Singhal 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 38.  Parduman Kr Jain 3,700 0.07% 3,700 0.07% - 

 39.  Piyush Jain 1,93,7

00 

3.74% 1,93,700 3.74% - 

 40.  Poonam Bhasin 1,200 0.02% 1,200 0.02% - 

 41.  Poonam Jain 3,000 0.06% - 0.00% -0.06% 

 42.  Pradeep Kumar Jain 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 43.  Pratibha Jain 11,60

0 

0.22% - 0.00% -0.22% 

 44.  Premvati Jain 10,60

0 

0.20% 10,600 0.20% - 

 45.  R.B Srivastava 15,80

0 

0.30% - 0.00% -0.30% 

 46.  Rahul Jain 12,10

0 

0.23% 12,100 0.23% - 

 47.  Raj Kumar Bindal 1,200 0.02% 1,200 0.02% - 

 48.  Raj Kumar Kalra 23,40

0 

0.45% 23,400 0.45% - 

 49.  Rajender Pras Sharma 1,100 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 50.  Rajinder Kalra 23,40

0 

0.45% 23,400 0.45% - 

 51.  Ram Narain Jain 56,10

0 

1.08% 56,100 1.08% - 

 52.  Rama Prasad Modala 500 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 53.  Reeta 600 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 54.  Rekha Bajoria 4,000 0.08% - 0.00% -0.08% 

 55.  S C Sharma 14,00

0 

0.27% 14,000 0.27% - 

 56.  Sanjay Jain 3,700 0.07% 3,700 0.07% - 

 57.  Sachin Gupta 1,100 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 58.  Sameer Jain 600 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 59.  Santosh Jain 36,21

0 

0.70% 36,210 0.70% - 

 60.  Sapna Jain 1,10,7

00 

2.14% 1,10,700 2.14% - 

 61.  Saroj Jain 3,700 0.07% 3,700 0.07% - 

 62.  Satish Kumar Jain 4,500 0.09% 2,300 0.04% -0.04% 

 63.  Satya Bhushan Jain 67,01

0 

1.29% 67,010 1.29% - 
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 64.  Shashi Sharma 25,20

0 

0.49% 16,200 0.31% -0.17% 

 65.  Sri Chand 9,300 0.18% 9,300 0.18% - 

 66.  Subhash Chand Jain 2,300 0.04% - 0.00% -0.04% 

 67.  Subhash Sharma 5,500 0.11% - 0.00% -0.11% 

 68.  Sumat Chand Jain 4,000 0.08% - 0.00% -0.08% 

 69.  Sunil Jain 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 70.  Swarn Taneja 600 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 71.  Uma Jain 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 72.  Veena Bansal 700 0.01% - 0.00% -0.01% 

 73.  Vikash Jain 3,700 0.07% 3,700 0.07% - 

 74.  Vishwa Bandhu Saluja 40,90

0 

0.79% 40,900 0.79% - 

 75.  Lal Chand HUF 48,00

0 

0.93% 48,000 0.93% - 

 76.  Amit Gupta 1100 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 77.  Amit Gupta 1,100 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 78.  Girdhar Gopal 1,100 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 79.  Mukesh Jain 3,000 0.06% - 0.00% -0.06% 

 80.  Mukesh Jain 900 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 81.  Sachin Gupta 1,100 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 82.  Sachin 1,100 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 83.  Subhash Chand Jain 2,300 0.04% - 0.00% -0.04% 

 84.  ATM Credit India Limited* 1,35,0

00 

2.61% 1,35,000 2.61% 0.00% 

 85.  Bhushan Paper & Ltd 1,68,0

00 

3.24% - 0.00% -3.24% 

 86.  Darshni Enterprises Private Ltd. 55,00

0 

1.06% 55,000 1.06% - 

 87.  Nirman Securities Ltd 1,60,0

00 

3.09% 1,60,000 3.09% - 

 88.  S J Packaging Pvt Ltd 4,700 0.09% 4,700 0.09% - 

 89.  S J Service Ltd 1,200 0.02% - 0.00% -0.02% 

 TOTAL 19,91,

130 

38.43%  13,07,320 25.23

% 

  

 * Not found on MCA Portal. 

 **Re-classification of shareholders from Public category to Promoter & Promoter Group. 
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7. OTHER EQUITY 

  

As at 

 March 31,2023  

(Rs. '000's) 

 As at  

 March 31,2022  

(Rs. '000's) 

OTHER EQUITY   
Retained Earnings              (11,421.97)             (11,040.51) 

               (11,421.97)            (11,040.51) 

Notes:    

    

 Retained Earnings   

 Opening balance              (11,040.51)             (10,907.25) 

 Add: Profit/ Loss for the year                  (381.46)                 (133.26) 

               (11,421.97)            (11,040.51) 

    

 Retained Earnings    

 

Retained Earnings are profits that the company has eraned till date less transfer to Reserve Fund, other 

distribution or transaction with shareholders. 

 

8. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

8.1 BORROWINGS 
  

 
UNSECURED (at amortised cost) 

  

 
(a) Loans from Related Parties 

  

 
   Satya Bhushan Jain ( Director ) 5,340.13 5,270.13  
   Sudhanshu Saluja  ( Director ) 223.58 223.58  
(b) Others 

  

 
 Inter Corporate loan  319.68 - 

  
5,883.40 5,493.71 

 
Note: 

  

 
Loans from directors are repayable on demand, and are interest free.  
Inter corporate loans are repayable on demand and carry interest rate @ 8% p.a.    

8.2 TRADE PAYABLES  
Total outstanding dues of micro and small 

enterprises 

                          -                            -    

 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

micro and small enterprises 

                   178.18                   178.18  

  
                   178.18                   178.18  

  

 
Notes:  
* Trade payables includes due to related parties Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022: Nil)  
* The amounts are unsecured and are non-interest bearing.  
a) Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2023 is given 

below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 

basis of information available with the Company. 
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i) Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under 

MSMED ACT:  
Principal NIL NIL  
Interest NIL NIL  
ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in 

terms of section16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along 

with the amounts of the payment made to the 

supplier beyond the appointed day during each 

accounting year. 

NIL NIL 

    

 
iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the 

period of delay in making payment (which have 

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 

year) but without adding the interest specified 

under MSMED Act. 

NIL NIL 

    

 
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining 

unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 

NIL NIL 

    

 
v)  The amount of further interest remaining due 

and payable even in the succeeding years, until 

such date when the interest dues as above are 

actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose 

of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under 

section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006 

NIL NIL 

        
Ageing Schedule : 2023   

    

 
Particulars Less than 1 

year 

1-2 

years 

 2-3  

years  

More 

than 3 

years 

 Total   

 
i) MSME 

     

 
ii) Others - - - 178.18 178.18 

 
iii) Disputed dues -

MSME 

     

 
iv) Disputed dues - 

others 

     

 
    

    

 
Ageing Schedule:2022   

    

 
Particulars Less than 1 

year 

1-2 

years 

 2-3 

years  

More 

than 3 

years 

 Total  
 

 
i) MSME 

     

 
ii) Others - - - 178.18 178.18 

 
iii) Disputed dues -

MSME 
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iv) Disputed dues - 

others 

     

  
  

    

8.3 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  
At amortised cost  
Creditors for Capital Goods - - 

 
Others 

  

 
    Employee Benefit Expenses Payable 231.00 219.00  
    Other Payables 224.00 246.94 

  
455.00 465.94 

 
Notes:  
* Other Payables include advertisement expenses, audit fees, legal expenses and rent payable.  
* Employees benefit expenses include payable to directors Rs.219(000's) (Previous Year-

Rs.219(000's)) 

 

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Statutory Dues   

 ESIC & PF Payable 1,181.84 1,181.84 

 ROC Fee Payable 180.00 180.00 

 TDS Payable 20.00 - 

   1,381.84 1,361.84 

 

10. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sale of products   
Other operating revenues   

 Commission Received - - 

  - - 

 

11. OTHER INCOME 

Interest received on financial assets carried at amortised 

cost:   

 From banks - - 

Other non-operating income    

 Excess Provision for Tax witten off - - 

 Interest income from Income Tax Refund - - 

  - - 

 

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 

Salaries and wages 58.00 - 

Staff Welfare - - 

 58.00 - 

13. FINANCE COSTS 
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Interest on Borrowing 3.68 - 

Others   
Bank charges 1.22 0.30 

 4.90 0.30 

 

14. OTHER EXPENSES 

Advertisement Expenses 9.61 20.11 

Legal and professional charges 275.44 69.26 

Payment to auditors    

 Audit Fee 25.00 25.00 

 GST 4.50 4.50 

Postage & Telegram - 10.09 

Miscellaneous expenses  4.00 4.00 

  318.55 132.96 

 

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

A. Contingent Liabilities:  
a.  Claims against the company not acknowledged as 

debt 

- - 

 
b. Guarantees 125.00 125.00  
c. Other money for which the company is contingent 

liable 

- - 

   
125.00 125.00 

 

16. OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 

1 In the opinion of the Board of Directors, assets are stated at realizable value in the ordinary course of 

business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.    

  

2 The company has accumulated losses and its net worth has been fully eroded and, the Company's current 

liabilities exceeded its current assets as at the balance sheet date, Hence,the financial statements have been 

prepared after making necessary adjustments to the recoded assets and liabilities  wherever necessary 

adjustments to the recorded assets and liabilities wherever necessary in view to inappropriateness of the 

fundamental accounting assumption  of 'Going Concern' 

  

3 The listing of Company’s shares on Stock Exchange is under suspension. However, the Company is actively 

taking necessary steps to get the suspension revoked on Bombay Stock Exchange. 

  

4 Operating Segments 

 The Company's main business is sale/purchase of papers and boards. All other activities of the Company 

revolve around this main business. There are no separate segments within the Company as defined by the 

Ind AS 108 (Operating Segment) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

  

5 Related party transactions 
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 The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24,"Related Party Disclosures", (specified under section 133 

of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015) are disclosed below: 

 A Names of related parties and 

description of relationship : 

  

 (i) Key Management Personnel   

  Mr. Satya Bhushan Jain   

  Mr. Vishwa Bandhu Saluja (Expired on 

3rd May, 2021) 

  

  Mr. Ashish Jain   

  Smt. Vasudha Jain   

  Smt. Divya Mittal ,Company Secretary    

  Mr. Sudhanshu Saluja (w.e.f 27th May, 

2021) 

  

     

 (i) Relatives of key management 

personnel 

  

  Rishab Papers   

     

 B Transactions during the year   

   As at 

March 31, 2023 

(Rs. ‘000) 

As at 

March 31, 

2022 

(Rs. ‘000) 

     

 (i) Loans taken:   

  Satya Bhushan Jain 70.00 0.25 

   70.00 0.25 

     

 (ii) Loans repaid:   

  Satya Bhushan Jain - 2.50 

   - 2.50 

 (iii) Salary Paid   

  Key Management Personnel   

  Mr. Vishwa Bandhu Saluja - - 

  MS. Divya Mittal 58.00 - 

   - - 

     

 (iv) Outstanding Balance Payable   

  Satya Bhushan Jain 5,340.13 5,270.13 

  Sudhanshu Saluja 538.58 538.58 

  Divya Mittal 12.00 - 

  5,878.71 5,808.71 

 The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 

transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in 

cash. 

  

6 The following table summarises movement in indebtness as on the reporting date: 



  

www.bjduplexboard.com 

94 

 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 

    (Amount in 

Rs.'000) 

  Particulars As at April 1, 

2022 

 

Net 

Cashf

low 

Classifi

ed as 

current 

Chan

ge in 

fair 

value

s 

As at 

Marc

h 31, 

2023 

  Non current 

borrowings 

     

  Term loan from bank - - - - - 

        

  Current borrowings      

  Repayable on demand      

  From related parties 5,493.71 389.6

9 - - 

5,883.

40 

  From others - - - - - 

  Others - - - - - 

  Total 

5,493.71 

389.6

9 - - 

5,883.

40 

        

  (Amount in Rs.'000) 

  Particulars As at April 1, 

2021 

 

Net 

Cashf

low 

Classifi

ed as 

current 

Chan

ge in 

fair 

value

s 

As at 

Marc

h 31, 

2022 

  Non Current 

Borrowings 

 

     

  Term loan from Bank - - - - - 

        

  Current borrowings      

  Repayable on demand      

  From Related Parties 5,647.58 (153.

87) 

- - 5,493.

71 

    From Others - - - - - 

    Others - - - - - 

  Total 5,647.58 (153.

87) 

- - 5,493.

71 

     

7 Fair value measurements 

 Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial 

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values: 

   Carrying Value 

(In Rs.'000) 

Fair Value (In 

Rs.'000) 
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 Financial instruments by category As at 

March 

31, 

2023 

As at 

Marc

h 31, 

2022 

As at 

March 

31, 

2023 

As 

at 

Mar

ch 

31, 

2022 

 Financial assets at amortized cost     

 Cash and bank balances 117.64 100.3

5 

117.64 100.

35 

 Other financial assets (current) - - - - 

 Other financial assets (non-current) 125.00 125.0

0 

125.00 125.

00 

 Trade receivables - - - - 

  225.35 242.6

4 

225.35 242.

64 

       

 Financial Liabilities at amortized cost     

 Trade payables 178.18 178.1

8 

178.18 178.

18 

 Borrowings (non-current) - - - - 

 Borrowings (current) 5,883.4

0 

5,493.

71 

5,883.4

0 

5,49

3.71 

 Other financial liabilities (non-current) - - - - 

 Other financial liabilities (current) 455.00 465.9

4 

455.00 465.

94 

   6,137.8

3 

6,516.

58 

6,137.8

3 

6,13

7.83 

 1) The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at 

which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between 

willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods 

and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

 2) The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans, if any, 

are determined by using Discounted cash flow method using discount rate that 

reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The 

own non-performance risk as at 31st March, 2023 was assessed to be 

insignificant. 

 3) Long-term receivables/ payables are evaluated by the Company based on 

parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the 

counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this 

evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of 

these receivables. 

 4) The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement 

categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a 

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2023, are as shown below: 

  Fair Value Hierarchy   

  The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the 

fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique: 
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  Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities 

  Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on 

the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly 

  Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded 

fair value that are not based on observable market data 

     

  Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as 

on March 31, 2023: 

  (Amount in Rs.'000) 

   Carrying 

Value 

 

Fair Value 

    Le

vel 

1 

Le

vel 

2 

Level 3 

 Assets carried at amortized cost for which fair value are 

disclosed 

    

 Cash and bank balances 117.64 - - 117.64 

 Other financial assets (non-current) 125.00 - - 125.00 

 Other financial assets (current) - - - - 

 Trade receivables  - - - 

  242.64   242.64 

      

 Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed     

 Trade payables 178.18 - - 178.18 

 Borrowings (non-current) - - - - 

 Borrowings (current) 5,883.40 - - 5,883.40 

 Other financial liabilities (non current) -   - 

 Other financial liabilities (current) 455.00 - - 455.00 

  6,516.58   6,516.58 

      

 Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on March 31, 2023: 

  Carrying 

Value 

 

Fair Value 

   Le

vel 

1 

Le

vel 

2 

Level 3 

 Assets carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed     

 Cash and bank balances 100.35 - - 100.35 

 Other financial assets (non-current) 125.00  - 125.00 

 Other financial assets (current) - - - - 

 Trade receivables - - - - 

   225.35   225.35 

       

 Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed     
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 Trade payables 178.18 - - 178.18 

 Borrowings (non-current) - - - - 

 Borrowings (current) 5,493.71 - - 5,493.71 

 Other financial liabilities (non current) - - - - 

 Other financial liabilities (current) 465.94 - - 465.94 

  6,137.83   6,137.83 

 Note: 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, and other current liabilities 

approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

  

8 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

 The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. 

The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s 

principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are 

derived directly from its operations. 

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business 

strategies. The Company is exposed to market risk, and liquidity risk. 

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals 

working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the 

Company are accountable to the Board of Directors.  This process provides assurance to Company's senior 

management  that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and 

procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company 

policies and Company risk objective. 

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized 

as below: 

(a) Market Risk 

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest risk, currency risk and other 

price risk. However, the Company does not have currency and other price risk as at 31 March, 2023 (31 

March, 2022: Nil) 

 

(b) Credit Risk 

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or 

customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating 

activities and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments. 

(i) Financial instruments and cash deposits 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s management 

in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made in bank deposits and other 

risk free securities. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial 

loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. 

 

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2023 

is the carrying amounts. The Company’s maximum exposure relating to financial is noted in liquidity table 

below. Trade Receivables and other financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation 

of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in the repayment plan with the Company. 

   As at March 31, 

2023 

As at March 

31, 2022 
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(Rs. ‘000) (Rs. ‘000) 

 Financial assets for which allowance is measured using 12 

months Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL) 

  

 Cash and cash equivalents   

 Other bank balances 117.64 100.35 

 Others non-current financial assets - - 

 Others current financial assets 125.00 125.00 

                             242.64 225.35 

 Financial assets for which allowance is measured using Life time 

Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL) 

  

 Trade receivables (gross) - - 

   -  

 (c) Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on 

time or at reasonable price. The Company's objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity 

to meet its cash and liquidity requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys 

a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate source of financing through financing from 

directors, Companies within the group or others. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position 

through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. 

Maturity profile of financial liabilities 

The table below provides the details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities 

at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

   (Amount in Rs. ‘000) 

   Less than 1 year 

 

1 to 5 years Total 

  As at March 31, 

2023 

   

  Trade payables 178.18 - 178.18 

  Borrowings 5,883.40 - 5,883.40 

  Other non current 

financial liabilities 

- - - 

  Other current 

financial liabilities 

455.00 - 455.00 

      

  As at March 31, 

2022 

   

  Borrowings 5,493.71 - 5,493.71 

  Trade payables 178.18 - 178.18 

  Other non current 

financial liabilities 

- - - 

  Other current 

financial liabilities 

465.94 - 465.94 

  In Company this risk risk is quite high due to inadequate sources of funding and 

lack of increase in operating activities 

     

9 Capital Management 
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For the purposes of Company's  capital management, Capital includes equity attributable to the equity 

holders of the Company and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company's capital 

management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic 

conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 

Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject 

to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

The paid up capital of Company was reduced to 51,81,200 euity share of Rs. 1/- each from the existing 

51,81,200 equity share of Rs. 1/- each pursuant to admission to of corporate action by Central Depository 

Services Limited and National Securities Depository Limited and subsequent cancellation of share 

certificate by the Registrar during the quarter ended 31st December, 2018. The Reduction of capital was 

effected through the order of Hon'ble High Court, pronounced on 29th August, 2016. The balance of Rs 

46630.8/-(Rs. in 000's) arising from reduction of share capital has been adjusted through Debit Balance of 

Retained Earning in the financial year 2018-19. 

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. 

However, since net loss exceeds loans and borrowings, Gearing ratio is not calculated. 

     

1

0 

Earnings per share  

(Amount in Rs. ‘000) 

   As at March 31, 

2023 

 

As at March 

31, 2022 

 a) Basic/ Dilute Earnings Per 

Share 

   

  Numerator for earnings per 

share 

 

  

  Profit / (Loss) after taxation  (Rs.) (381.46) (133.26) 

      

  Denominator for earnings 

per share 

   

  Weighted number of equity 

shares outstanding during 

the year 

(Nos.) 

51,81,200 51,81,200 

      

  Earnings per share - Basic 

(one equity share of Rs.1/- 

each)(In March, 2022 one 

equity share of Rs. 1/- each) 

(Rs.) 

(0.07) (0.03) 

 Note: There are no instruments issued by the Company which have effect of dilution of basic earning per 

share. 

     

1

1 

Details title deeds of Immovable Property are as under: NIL  

 Relevant line item in 

the Balance sheet 

Descri

ption 

of item 

of 

Gross 

carryi

ng 

value 

Title 

deed

s 

held 

Whether 

title deed 

holder is a 

promoter, 

Property held 

since which date 

Reason for not 

being held in 

the name of 
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proper

ty 

in 

the 

nam

e of 

director or 

relative of 

promoter*/d

irector or 

employee of 

promoter/di

rector 

the 

company** 

 PPE Land 

Buildin

g 

- - - - - 

 Investment Property Land             

Buildin

g 

- - - - - 

 PPE retired from active 

use and held for 

disposal 

Land      

Buildin

g 

- - - - - 

 others - - - - - - 

     

1

2 

Registration of Charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies 

 S. No. Assets Charge 

Amount 

Date of 

Creation 

Date of 

Modification 

Status 

 1 
Book Debts 50,00,000 

10-24-

1997 
02-26-1998 

Open 

 2 Book Debts 1,00,00,000 7-24-1999 - Open 

 3 
Book Debts 70,00,000 

01/10/199

7 
2-26-1998 

Open 

 4 Immovable 

property or 

any interest 

therein 

3,00,00,000 11-22-

1995 

11/04/1997 Open 

 The charge has not been satisified by the bank. The Company is taking necessary steps to satisfy the same. 

     

1

3 

Following Ratios as disclosed:- 

 

 2022-23 2021-22 Reaso

n  Numerat

or 

Denominat

or 

Rati

o 

Numerat

or 

Denominat

or 

Rati

o 

Varianc

e 

 

(a)Current 

Ratio 

117.64 7,898.41 0.01 100.35 7,499.66 0.01 0.00 NA 

(b)Debt - 

Equity 

Ratio 

5,883.40 7,655.77 0.77 5,493.71 -7,274.31 -0.76 1.52 NA 

(c)Debt- 

Service 

-381.46 5,883.40 -0.06 -133.26 5,493.71 -0.02 -0.04 NA 
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Coverage 

Ratio 

(d)Return 

on Equity 

Ratio 

-381.46 -7,207.68 0.05 -133.26 -7,207.68 0.02 0.03 NA 

(e)Invento

ry 

Turnover 

Ratio 

- -  - - - - NA 

(f)Trade 

Receivable

s Turnover 

Ratio 

- -  - - - - NA 

(g)Trade 

Payables 

Turnover 

Ratio 

- 178.18  - 178.18 - - NA 

(h)Net 

Capital 

Turnover 

Rtio  

- -7,780.77  - -7,399.31 - - NA 

(i)Net 

Profit 

Ratio 

-381.46 -  -133.26 - - - NA 

(j)Return 

on Capital 

Employed 

-381.46 -1,772.37 0.22 -133.26 -1,780.60 0.07 0.14 NA 

(k)Return 

on 

Investment  

-381.46 234.00 -1.63 -133.26 373.39 -0.36 -1.27 NA 

 

  

1

4 

Deferred Tax Assets (net) as on 31st March, 2023 is as follows: 

  As at March 31, 

2023 

(Rs. ‘000) 

As at March 

31, 2022 

(Rs. ‘000) 

 Deferred tax Asset/ (Liabilities)   

 On account of carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 4,773.63 4,674.45 

 On account of MAT Credit 334.05 334.05 

  5,107.68 5,008.50 

 The deferred tax asset of Rs. 5107.68 (March 31, 2022: Rs. 5008.50) has not been recognised since the 

probability that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary 

differences can be utilised is not certain. 
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1

5 

The Company has been changed its registered office address from H.NO.83,Top Floor, Chawari Bazar , 

delhi-110006 to H. No 54, F/F New Rajdhani Enclave, Near MCD Park Shahdara DL 110092 ( w.e.f 4th 

November, 2022). 

 

1

6 

Figures relating to 31st March, 2023 has been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to make them 

comparable with current year figures. 

 

1

7 

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees to thousands with upto two decimals. 

 

1

8 

Note No. 1 to 16 form integral part of the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss. 
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